
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

AApprriill  33,,  22002233  
  



March 31, 2023  6:26:01 PM 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
APRIL 3, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK AND  

AVAILABLE OVERFLOW ROOM AT COOPERATIVE EXT, 128 E. WATER STREET, 
PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes from January 23 & 24, 2023 Budget Work Sessions and March 6, 
2023 Regular Meeting  

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (March 2023) 
c) RESO 2023-001 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – 521 Monroe Street 
d) RESO 2023-002 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – Park Avenue 
e) RESO 2023-003 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – 411 Brinkley Avenue 
f) RESO 2023-012 Authorizing Sale of Small Item:  ARGO Conquest 8x8 
g) RESO 2023-013  Resolution by Governing Body of Recipient 

     Acceptance of ARP Funds for An Asset Inventory and Assessment Study 
h) Approval of Grant and Procurement Manager Position and Advertisement 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM  Trillium Update Presentation, Mr. Dave Peterson, Trillium Senior Regional Director 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM AVEOC Design Proposal Selection, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 5    6:50 PM  Pre-K – 12 New School Update & LGC Application Approval, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
Item 6 7:00  PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance 

Officer 
 

Item 7 7:10 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 

Item 8 7:55 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 
privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  April 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes for January 23 & 24, 2023 Budget Workshops and March 6, 2023 
Regular Meeting (located at the end of the Agenda Package).  See attached. 

 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (March 2023). See attached. 

 
c) RESO 2023-001 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – 521 Monroe Street. See attached. 

 
d) RESO 2023-002 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – Park Avenue. See attached. 

 
e) RESO 2023-003 Authorizing Sale of Real Property – 411 Brinkley Avenue. See attached. 

 
f) RESO 2023-012 Authorizing Sale of Small Item:  ARGO Conquest 8x8. See attached. 

 
g) RESO 2023-013  Resolution by Governing Body of Recipient Acceptance of ARP Funds 

for An Asset Inventory and Assessment Study. See attached. 
 

h) Approval of Grant and Procurement Manager Position and Advertisement. See attached. 
 

















































Washington County Resolution 2023-001 Page 1 of 4  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-001 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 521 MONROE ST, BY 
ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 
 

 WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption of a 
resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at public auction subject to 
the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Plymouth approved this sale via Resolution; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should 
be sold at public auction as surplus property;  
 

1. 521 MONROE ST. - PLYMOUTH NC; Tax Pin #6767.11-65-4496; Deed Book 540, Page 
239-240;  

2. GIS MAP (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated tax value and back taxes owed is $6,662.88; County = $2,988.24 & 

Town = $3,674.64 (See Attachment B) 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 
www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from April 5 – May 7, 
2023 and bidding May 8 - May 26, 2023; following approval of this resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be posted at 
least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, where 
feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic auction may be 
broadly advertised.  

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2023-001 Page 2 of 4  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the property to 
be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the electronic address where 
information about the property to be sold can be found, a reference to the resolution 
authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their next 
regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 30 days of 
said report. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-001 Page 3 of 4  

 
ATTACHMENT A 

(GIS Map) 
 
 

 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-001 Page 4 of 4  

ATTACHMENT B 
(Property Card) 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-002 
 

Page 1 of 4  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-002 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, PARK AVE, BY 
ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 

  
 WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption of a 
resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at public auction subject to 
the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Plymouth approved this sale via Resolution; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should 
be sold at public auction as surplus property;  

1. PARK AVE. - PLYMOUTH NC; Tax Pin #6767.18-21-5355; Deed Book 540, Page 237-238;  
2. GIS MAP (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated tax value and back taxes owed is $4,984.83; County = $2,145.67 & 

Town = $2,839.16 (See Attachment B) 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 
www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from April 5 – May 7, 
2023 and bidding May 8 - May 26, 2023; following approval of this resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be posted at 
least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, where 
feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic auction may be 
broadly advertised.  

 
 
 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2023-002 
 

Page 2 of 4  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the property to 
be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the electronic address where 
information about the property to be sold can be found, a reference to the resolution 
authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their next 
regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 30 days of 
said report. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-002 
 

Page 3 of 4  

 
ATTACHMENT A 

(GIS Map) 
 

 
 

 



Washington County Resolution 2023-002 
 

Page 4 of 4  

 
ATTACHMENT B 
(Property Card) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-003 
 

Page 1 of 4  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-003 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 411 BRINKLEY AVENUE, 
BY ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 

  
 WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, upon adoption of a 
resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at public auction subject to 
the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Plymouth approved this sale via Resolution; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should 
be sold at public auction as surplus property;  
 

1. 411 BRINKLEY AVENUE - PLYMOUTH NC; Tax Pin #6767.11-55-9027; Deed Book 540, 
Page 241-242;  

2. GIS MAP (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated tax value and back taxes owed is $14,987.50; County = $4,214.26 & 

Town = $10,773.24 (See Attachment B) 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 
www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from April 5 – May 7, 
2023 and bidding May 8 - May 26, 2023; following approval of this resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be posted at 
least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, where 
feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic auction may be 
broadly advertised.  

 
 
 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2023-003 
 

Page 2 of 4  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the property to 
be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the electronic address where 
information about the property to be sold can be found, a reference to the resolution 
authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their next 
regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 30 days of 
said report. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-003 
 

Page 3 of 4  

ATTACHMENT A 
(GIS Map) 

 

  
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-003 
 

Page 4 of 4  

ATTACHMENT B 
(Property Card) 

 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-012 Page 1 of 5  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-012 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SMALL ITEM: ARGO CONQUEST 8X8, BY 
ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 

County to sell small property valued at less than $30,000 at public auction, including electronic 
public auction, upon adoption of a resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the 
property at public auction. 

 
WHEREAS, the Emergency Management Coordinator has recommended selling as surplus, the 

property described below, in conjunction with the sale of other surplus property, in order to use the 
proceeds of such sales toward offsetting the purchase of a newer side by side utility terrain vehicle 
“UTV” deemed to be safer, more reliable, and more mission appropriate for emergency management 
operations than the older property recommended to be sold as surplus, including the property 
specifically described hereinbelow; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has reserved unto itself, the right to pre-approve the sale of surplus 

personal property items such as the property described herein, which management considers to 
potentially have a surplus value exceeding $5,000; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, should 
be sold as public auction as surplus property with a minimum reserve bid amount of $5,000; and 
 

1. Surplus ID: 2023-022: ARGO CONQUEST 8X8 (ATV) 
2. Images (see Attachment A) 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 
www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from April 5, 2023 
until April 16, 2023. Bidding will begin April 17, 2023 and will end May 31, 2023. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of surplus property, described above, shall be posted 
at least 10 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property opens. 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2023-012 Page 2 of 5  

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, where 
feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic auction may be 
broadly advertised.  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the property to 
be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the electronic address where 
information about the property to be sold can be found, a reference to the resolution 
authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and conditions of sale. 

5. Upon the completion of the sale, the County Manager is authorized to complete the 
transfer of the auctioned property without further action or consent by the Board. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-012 Page 3 of 5  

ATTACHMENT A 
(3 photos) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-012 Page 4 of 5  

 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2023-012 Page 5 of 5  

 



Washington County Resolution 2023-013 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2023-013 
 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT 
ACCEPTANCE OF ARP FUNDS FOR AN ASSET INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT 

STUDY 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Washington has qualified for the Viability Utility Reserve (VUR) designation associated 
with the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the State Fiscal Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2021-180 to assist 
eligible units of government with meeting their water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding in the amount of $237,000 to perform an Asset Inventory and Assessment Study detailed in the submitted 
application, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Washington intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed scope of 
work. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY,  
 

1. That the County of Washington does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of $237,000. 
 

2. That the County of Washington does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be adhered to. 

 
3. That Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with this 
project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be 
required by the Division of Water Infrastructure. 

 
Adopted this the ________ of __________, 2023 at Plymouth, North Carolina. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Agenda Item Memo (w 2pg attachment)  Page 1 of 3 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: April 3rd, 2023   MEMO Date: March 31, 2023                 ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Approval of Grant & Procurement Manager Position & Advertisement 
DEPARTMENT: Admin/Finance    
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Position Description/Advertisement (2 pages) 

 
PURPOSE: To approve the addition of a Grant & Procurement Manager position, and to authorize staff to begin 
recruitment for this position upon approval.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:   

- At the County FY24 Budget Planning Workshop meetings, the County Manager proposed the potential 
addition of a new position (restoring a previously removed position from Finance) to serve as a Grant & 
Procurement Manager. 
 

- With the anticipated departure in August of two key staff members currently working on a variety of 
grants in the County Manager’s Office, along with a growing volume of grant and procurement related 
work, the County Manager recommends moving forward immediately with the addition of this position to 
be added to the County Salary Schedule at Grade 26 in order to begin recruitment to better facilitate a 
potential overlap period between the new employee and departing staff presently working on grants, and 
to assist with the increasing grant/procurement work load. 
 

- A more complete description of the intended position is attached to this Memo 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S) BY STAFF:  

 
- VOTE: to approve the addition and advertisement to fill the new position described above. 

 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo (w 2pg attachment)  Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
Job Title: Grant and Procurement Manager 
 
Location: Washington County, North Carolina 
 
About Washington County: Washington County is a small county located in northeastern North 
Carolina. With a population of just over 12,000 residents, our county is known for its tight-knit 
community, beautiful natural scenery, and rich history. Working with Washington County offers a 
unique opportunity to make a positive impact on the community and contribute to the growth and 
development of the area. As a member of our team, you will have the opportunity to work with 
dedicated and passionate individuals who are committed to providing high-quality services to our 
residents. In addition to a fulfilling work environment, Washington County offers competitive salaries, 
excellent benefits, and a range of professional development opportunities. Our employees enjoy a 
comprehensive benefits package that includes health, dental, and vision insurance, 401k contribution, 
pension, paid vacation and sick leave, and more. Washington County is a great place to live, work, and 
raise a family. With its close proximity to the coast and its vibrant small-town community, our county 
offers a high quality of life that is unmatched. Whether you enjoy outdoor activities, cultural events, or 
simply relaxing with friends and family, you will find everything you need in Washington County. We 
welcome all qualified individuals to apply for our Grant and Procurement Manager position and join us 
in serving the residents of Washington County. 
 
Job Type: Full-time 
 
Salary: $40,400 – $59,906 dependent on experience 
 
Job Description: 
 
Our county is seeking a highly motivated and experienced Grant and Procurement Manager to join our 
team. As the Grant and Procurement Manager, you will be responsible for identifying and securing 
grants, managing the procurement process, and ensuring compliance with all applicable regulations, 
including and especially ARPA and federal uniform guidance.  
 
Responsibilities: 
 
Identify and pursue grant opportunities that align with the county's goals and objectives. 
Develop grant proposals and manage the grant application process. 
Manage the procurement process, including preparing bid documents, soliciting bids, and evaluating 
proposals. 
Ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to procurement and grant 
management. 
Maintain accurate records of grants and procurement activities. 
Collaborate with county departments to identify procurement needs and develop procurement strategies. 
Develop and maintain relationships with vendors and grantors. 



Agenda Item Memo (w 2pg attachment)  Page 3 of 3 
 

Monitor grant performance and ensure compliance with grant requirements. 
Prepare regular reports on grant and procurement activities for county officials. 
 
Requirements: 
 
Bachelor's degree in business administration, public administration, or a related field. 
At least 1 year of experience in grant writing and procurement management. 
Knowledge of federal and state regulations related to grant and procurement management. 
Excellent written and verbal communication skills. 
Strong analytical and problem-solving skills. 
Ability to work collaboratively with county officials, department heads, vendors, and grantors. 
Detail-oriented and organized. 
 
To apply, please submit a cover letter, resume, and completed job application highlighting your 
experience and qualifications for this position. We are an equal opportunity employer and welcome 
applications from all qualified individuals. 
 
 

https://washconc.org/employment-opportunities/


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     April 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     April 3, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Trillium Update, Mr. Dave Peterson, Trillium Senior Regional Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Each year Mr. Peterson comes to speak to the Board and gives and update on Trillium. 
See attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



Transforming Lives

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 
ANNUAL REPORT WASHINGTON COUNTY

DAVE PETERSON, MA
SENIOR REGIONAL DIRECTOR



TRILLIUM UPDATE

Trillium’s mission:  Transforming lives and building 
community well-being through partnership and 
proven solutions.       
 Who We Are
 Medicaid Transformation Changes
 Organizational changes 
 County Data



Who We Are - Numbers

 28 Counties, adding Halifax and Bladen counties
 Total population is 1,534,885
 Served 45,988 individuals with severe behavioral health 

needs
 70% with MH needs
 20% with SUD
 10% with IDD

 Approximately 550 Behavioral Health and I/DD 
Providers

 $520,839,592 spent on services last year
 Smallest County- Tyrrell 3,254- Largest County -New 

Hanover 229,018
 Cover over 13,000 square miles



Three Regions

REGION POPULATION
SQUARE 

MILES
# OF 

COUNTIES

Northern 252,211 4,235 11

Central 494,312 4,717 9

Southern 797,086 5,063 8



Medicaid Transformation- Standard Plans

 Standard Plan- 5 companies were awarded
 Amerihealth Caritas NC Inc.
 Blue Cross Blue Shield of NC
 UnitedHealthcare of NC Inc. 
 WellCare of NC Inc.
 Carolina Complete Health- covers regions 3, 4 and 5

 These Plans are managing the mild to moderate 
Medicaid behavioral health recipients

They started on July 1st 2021
 Trillium has partnered with Carolina Complete 

Health to assist in managing the physical health 



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan:

 6 LME/MCO’s will be fully operational Tailored 
Plans serving the Severe Mental Health, Substance 
Use, and I/DD population

 Original date to go live with the Tailored Plan was 
moved from July 1st, 2022 to December 1st 2022, 
then to April 1st, 2023.

 The state recently moved the date to now October 
1st, 2023

 Soft launch of Care Management began December 
1st, 2022



Behavioral Health I/DD Tailored Plan Regions



Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan 
Continued

 Dec. 1st 2022- Began the Care Management 
Services for individuals with Severe Behavioral 
Health, Substance Use and I/DD population 
including their physical health

 We are contracting with a Pharmacy Benefits 
Manager to oversee contract with approximately 
2000 pharmacies

 We are also contracting with all Primary care 
agencies that serve individuals on Medicaid



Organizational Changes

 System of Care Staff moved over to Care 
Management

 We hired Community Liaison Coordinators
 Care Management includes Population Health
 Contract with Carolina Complete Health (CCH) to 

contract with all of our hospitals and physical health 
agencies including Local Health Departments

 Q&A 
https://www.trilliumhealthresources.org/sites/default
/files/docs/Medicaid-Transformation-Provider/CCH-
Trillium-QA.pdf

https://www.trilliumhealthresources.org/sites/default/files/docs/Medicaid-Transformation-Provider/CCH-Trillium-QA.pdf


Organizational changes continued:

Call Centers
 Pharmacy
 Provider
 Nurse
 Member & Recipient Service Line (main call center)
 Behavioral Health Crisis Line

Care Management
 Whole Person Care
 Specialty CM Teams

 ED Disposition Team
 DJJ Care Management Team
 Rapid Access Care Coordination



Project Updates

 Opioid Settlement Projects
Naloxone kits

 Mobile Clinics
 Tribal Engagement
 Co-Responder Pilots
 CFAC adding a representative with TBI
 Healing Place in New Hanover



Consumers served in Washington County

Total Consumers served – 460

 Mental Health – 376
 Substance Use – 81
 I/DD – 73

Total is unduplicated, since a single individual may receive services in more than one 
category



Transforming Lives

QUESTIONS?



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 4 
 

  DATE: April 3, 2022  
 

ITEM: Aviation/Emergency Operations Center (AVEOC) Design 
Proposal Selection, Mr. Curtis Potter 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

See attached. 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 



Agenda Item Memo Page 1 of 1 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: April 3rd, 2023 MEMO Date: March 31, 2023                 ITEM:  
SUBJECT: AV/EOC Building Design RFQ Proposal Selection 
DEPARTMENT: Multiple (Aviation; Emergency Management) 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Firm Scoring Results Sheet (1 page)

PURPOSE: To approve the proposal review committee’s recommendation to select Oakley Collier as the most 
qualified firm to design the new AV/EOC facility at the Airport. 

BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:  
- The County applied for and received $3.25M in SCIF Funds from the State of North Carolina to use with

$1M in local match to build a new emergency management facility at the airport which will also replace
the current aging terminal building.

- An RFQ for design services was issued 1/26/23 and five proposals were received by the 3/3/23 deadline.
- A proposal review committee consisting of County Commissioner John Spruill, County Manager Curtis S.

Potter, County Finance Officer Missy Dixon, Senior Project Managers Mary Moscato and Richard
Livingston reviewed and independently scored the proposals as shown in the attached scoring sheet.

- The same committee interviewed the top two scoring firms on 3/22/23, after discussions about the initial
scores at the March 3rd, 2023 regular Board meeting.

- Pursuant to state law, once the most qualified firm is selected by the Board, the County can then enter into
negotiations to contract for design services at an agreeable fee.  The Board can require its pre-approval of
any final contract, or delegate final approval to its County Manager based on any conditions it may impose.

RECOMMENDED ACTION(S) BY STAFF: 
- VOTE: to approve the committee’s recommendation to select Oakley Collier Architects out

of Rocky Mount, NC as the most qualified firm to design the AV/EOC building based on
their proposal and interview; and authorize staff to begin negotiating an agreeable contract
to procure such services, or if necessary to negotiate with the next highest scoring firm(s)
shown in the attached scoring sheet, if such negotiations are not successful.

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C.SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Category
Total Points 
Possible Li

vi
ng
st
on

Di
xo
n

Sp
ru
ill

Po
tt
er

M
os
ca
to

Va
ria

bl
e 

Av
er
ag
e

Li
vi
ng
st
on

Di
xo
n

Sp
ru
ill

Po
tt
er

M
os
ca
to

Va
ria

bl
e 

Av
er
ag
e

Li
vi
ng
st
on

Di
xo
n

Sp
ru
ill

Po
tt
er

M
os
ca
to

Va
ria

bl
e 

Av
er
ag
e

Li
vi
ng
st
on

Di
xo
n

Sp
ru
ill

Po
tt
er

M
os
ca
to

Va
ria

bl
e 

Av
er
ag
e

Li
vi
ng
st
on

Di
xo
n

Sp
ru
ill

Po
tt
er

M
os
ca
to

Va
ria

bl
e 

Av
er
ag
e

Specialized or 
appropriate expertise 
in the type of project. 0‐3 3.0 2.7 1.7 2.1 2.7 2.4 1.8 2.4 1.5 1.5 0.3 1.5 2.4 2.7 2.4 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.1 3.0 1.2 1.8 2.1 2.0 1.8 3.0 3.0 2.1 2.7 2.5
Past performance on 
similar projects. 0‐2 1.8 1.8 1.1 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.2 0.8 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.3 2.0 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 2.0 1.9 1.4 1.4 1.6
Recent experience with 
project costs and 
schedules 0‐2 1.0 1.8 1.2 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.4 1.0 0.0 0.7 1.6 1.8 1.6 1.0 1.8 1.6 2.0 1.8 1.2 1.0 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.8 1.7 1.0 1.6 1.5

Proximity to and 
familiarity with the 
area where the project 
is located

0‐1 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.6 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.9 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.1 0.5

Record of successfully 
completed projects 
without major legal or 
technical problems

0‐1 0.7 0.6 0.4 1.0 0.5 0.6 0.0 1.0 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.4 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.4 0.8 0.7 0.9 0.7 0.2 0.7
Workload 0‐1 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.8 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.5 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.8

81.0 83.0 54.5 68.0 55.0 48.0 69.0 51.0 51.0 13.0 86.0 90.0 80.0 77.0 79.0 72.0 96.0 59.0 61.0 68.0 65.0 91.0 91.0 64.0 67.0

Intrepid Architecture

Aggregated Score

71.20

LS3P

Aggregated Score

75.60

Germano Oakley Collier Architects

Individual Scores

Lindsey

82.4046.4068.30
Aggregated ScoreAggregated Score Aggregated Score



OCA
March 3, 2023

WASHINGTON COUNTY
AVEOC TERMINAL PROJECT

Response to RFQ 



 

OAKLEY COLLIER ARCHITECTS 
1111 HAYNES STREET, SUITE 109      RALEIGH, NC 27604      919.985.7700 
109 CANDLEWOOD ROAD     ROCKY MOUNT, NC 27804     252.937.2500 

WWW.OAKLEYCOLLIER.COM 

March 2, 2023 
 
Mr. Curtis S. Potter, County Manager 
Washington County  

116 Adams Street  
Plymouth, North Carolina 27962 
 
Re: New Airport Terminal Building with Consolidated Emergency Operations/Training Center 
 
Dear Mr. Potter, 
 

We are delighted to present you with our qualifications for new Airport Terminal Building with Consolidated 
Emergency Operations/Training Center for Washington County! We understand the County will require a team 
with expertise in public safety and aviation facilities, a commitment to providing cost effective solutions, and a genuine 
concern for working together with your staff to meet the outlined project goals. All of which, Oakley Collier Architects 
can successfully deliver. We offer the following: 
 
 extensive design services for municipal projects - Our team has worked on over 175 public facility 

projects across North Carolina; 
 understanding of new construction challenges for local governments– Successfully completed 

projects for Town of Swansboro, Town of Princeville, Town of Kure Beach, City of Havelock, City of Greenville, 
City of Rocky Mount, City of Whiteville, Town of Nashville, Town of Garysburg, Town of Liberty, Town of 
Seaboard, Town of Williamston, Nash County, Dare County, Hyde County, Edgecombe County, Franklin 
County, Greene County, & many others; 

 thorough knowledge of cost effective and durable building materials to maintain strict 
budgets – Construction cost estimates within 2% during the last five years and project construction bids on 
budget. 

 
Our job is to ensure that your goals and objectives are met or exceeded, including your goal of coming in on budget 
and on time. Our passion for detail is your assurance that construction estimates are accurate and project schedules 
are realistic. The decisions you make in the next few months will have a lasting impact on your staff and citizens, and 
we want you to know that we take that responsibility just as seriously as you do. Simply put, we want to be a part of 

your team and look forward to working with Washington County again in the near future. Please do not hesitate to 
contact us if you would like any additional information. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Timothy D. Oakley, AIA, LEED® AP 
toakley@oakleycollier.com 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      1 
 

1.  F irm Prof i le  
 
Oakley Collier Architects, PA 
109 Candlewood Road  205 West Martin Street 
Rocky Mount, NC 27804 Raleigh, NC 27601 

(252) 937-2500  (919) 985-7700 
oakleycollier.com 
 
Authorized Contact:  Timothy D. Oakley, AIA, LEED® AP - toakley@oakleycollier.com 
 

BACKGROUND  WHAT WE DO 
Founded in 1988, Oakley Collier Architects is a 
company of architectural designers and planners 
dedicated to a common goal: to create distinctive 
architectural designs that are people, construction, 
and budget friendly. We consider each project a 

new and exciting challenge. OCA welcomes 
opportunities to bring creative solutions to our clients 
that result in successful project completions. Oakley 
Collier Architects principals are Timothy D. Oakley, 
AIA, LEED® AP; and Ann W. Collier, AIA, LEED® 
AP; who have a combined experience of over 
seventy years registered in North Carolina. Our 
staff of sixteen which includes five 
registered architects, is highly skilled in the 
production of competent and comprehensive 
construction documents of all scopes and sizes. Our 
thirty-four-year history of project experience 
includes additions, renovations, and new 
construction in the local government design market. 

We are a corporation and registered Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE). We have completed 
EOC and Aviation work in one state. 

 
 Site Evaluation 

 Feasibility Studies 

 Land Use Studies 

 Regulatory Code Compliance Studies 

 Programming 

 Interior Space Planning 

 Spatial Needs Analysis 

 Detailed Cost Analysis 

 Master Planning 

 Schematic Design 

 Design Development 

 Construction Documents 

 Specification Preparation & Review 

 Bidding & Negotiation 

 Construction Administration 

 Project Close-Out 

 Record Drawings 

 
 
  



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      2 
 

2.  Resumes 
 

Timothy D. Oakley, AIA, LEED® AP  
Architect of Record / President 
Timothy D. Oakley is the founding principal of Oakley Collier Architects, PA. He is 
responsible for the oversight of the firm. He has developed expertise in coordinating in-
house staff, consultants, contractors / construction managers, and regulatory agencies. He 
enjoys technical aspects of architecture including design, management, and construction 
techniques. He graduated from Nash Community College.  
 

Registrations: Architect - NC #5967, American Institute of Architects, LEED® 2.0 Accredited Professional  
 
Experience: Global TransPark Building, Triangle North Executive Airport Hanger, Nash County Emergency Services, 
Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, Nash County Salem Fire Department, Kure Beach Fire Department, Kure Beach 
Town Hall & Police Department Renovation, Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, Garysburg Fire Department, Rocky 
Mount Fire Stations #4 & 5 Renovations, Rocky Mount Fire Station #7 PSAP Upgrade, Winterville Community Rural Fire 
Station, Nashville Police Department and Fire Department Renovation, Atlantic Beach Boardwalk 
 
 

Ann W. Collier, AIA, LEED® AP 
Managing Architect / Vice-President 
Ann W. Collier is a partner and principal with Oakley Collier Architects, PA. She is 
responsible for daily operations within the firm. With over 30 years of experience in the 
design profession, she has provided specialized programming, planning, and design 
knowledge for many K-12 educational projects. She graduated from NC State University. 
 
 

Registrations: Architect - NC #6886, American Institute of Architects, LEED® 2.0 Accredited Professional 
 
Experience:  Kure Beach Fire Department, Ahoskie Fire Department, Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, Nashville 
Police Department and Fire Department Renovation, Seaboard Fire Department, Warren County Emergency Services 
Facility, Kure Beach Town Hall & Police Department Renovation, Seaboard Fire Department, Warren County Emergency 
Services Facility, Fayetteville Public Works Commission Space Needs Study, Seaboard Volunteer Fire Department, Dare 
County EMS Stations Facilities Conditions Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      3 
 

David A. Griffin, LEED® AP 
Senior Project Manager 
David Griffin has more than 25 years of experience serving the private and public sectors as 
a Design Project Manager for Oakley Collier Architects. David is responsible for managing 
educational, municipal, recreational, industrial, healthcare and commercial projects. He 
attended NC State University & Nash Community College. 
 
 

Registrations:  LEED® 2.0 Accredited Professional 
 
Experience: Global TransPark Building, Triangle North Executive Airport Hanger, Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, 
Nash County Salem Fire Department, Princeville Senior Center, Princeville Museum, Ahoskie Fire Department, Kure 
Beach Fire Department, Kure Beach Town Hall & Police Department Renovation, Nash County Water Operations 
Facility, Garysburg Fire Department, Rocky Mount Fire Stations #4 & 5 Renovations, Rocky Mount Fire Station #7 PSAP 
Upgrade, Nash County Emergency Services, Havelock East End Fire Station Annex, Nashville Police Department and 
Fire Department Renovation, Atlantic Beach Boardwalk 
 
 

Matthew R. Oakley 
Construction Administrator 
Matt has been involved in construction administration services since he joined the firm in 
2010 and provides attentive and responsive service during the construction phase of the 
project. He has a BS in Construction Management from East Carolina University & also 
holds a NC General Contractors license.  
 
 

Registrations:  NC General Contractor #73302 
 
Experience: Global TransPark Building, Triangle North Executive Airport Hanger, Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, 
Nash County Salem Fire Department, Princeville Senior Center, Princeville Museum, Ahoskie Fire Department, Kure Beach 

Fire Department,  Kure Beach Town Hall & Police Department Renovation, Seaboard Fire Department, Nash County Water 
Operations Facility, Garysburg Fire Department, Rocky Mount Fire Stations #4 & 5 Renovations, Rocky Mount Fire Station 
#7 PSAP Upgrade, Nash County Emergency Services, Havelock East End Fire Station Annex, Carteret County General 
Services Operations Facility, West Mount Volunteer Fire Department, Salem Volunteer Fire Department, Nashville Police 
Department and Fire Department Renovation 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      4 
 

Structural Engineer 

Stewart, Inc.  
421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 400 
Raleigh, NC 27601 

(919) 380-8750 
www.stewartinc.com 
 
Stewart, Inc. is a multi-discipline design firm that specializes in structural, geotechnical, land development, and 
transportation engineering, surveying / geomatics and construction services. Founded in 1994 by Willy E. Stewart, PE, 
the firm has 110 employees located in offices in Raleigh, Durham, and Charlotte, NC. Stewart has one of the largest and 
most experienced structural departments in North Carolina, giving it the expertise and manpower necessary to successfully 

complete projects of all sizes. Stewart’s structural projects are executed using BIM technology, specifically Revit Structure. 
Oakley Collier has worked with Stewart on over 90% of our projects since their inception 28 years ago, and they are also 
working with us on all of our current projects requiring structural engineering. The firm is a minority-owned and certified 
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) with the State of North Carolina through the Statewide Uniform 
Certification (SWUC) program. 
 

Charley Lewis, PE 
Structural Engineer 
Charley has 25 years of 
experience, including 22 with 
Stewart, in a wide range of 
building structures. He has 
experience designing and 

managing the following project types: medical facilities, 
lab facilities, biomedical production facilities, light 
industrial facilities, university (classroom, labs, research, 
dorms), government, multi-family, parking decks, 
pedestrian bridges, commercial and renovations. 
Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #025934 
 

 Dennis L. Folmar, Jr., PE 
Civil Engineer  
With over 13 years of 

engineering experience, Denny 

is responsible for overall 

project management as well as 

the design of structural systems for commercial, 

institutional, educational and industrial buildings 

involving the use of steel, concrete, masonry, and 

wood.  

Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #029410 

Related Experience: Dare County Eight EMS Station & Fire Department Renovations/Replacements, 
Nash County Red Oak Volunteer Fire Department, Kure Beach Town Hall/Police Department Renovation 
& New Fire Department, Edenton Police Department, Havelock East End Fire Annex, Carteret County 
General Services Operations Facility, Havelock City Hall, Dare County DHHS Feasibility Study & 
Relocation, Garysburg New Town Hall/Police Department & Fire Station, Dare County DHHS Building 
Addition & Renovation, Havelock City Hall, Liberty Police Department, River Bend Town Hall & Police 
Department Study, Nashville Town Hall, Nashville Police Department Morrisville Public Safety Facility, 
Waynesville Town Hall & Fire Station #1, Durham Police Headquarters Complex,  

*projects in bold were completed with Oakley Collier Architects  

mailto:clewis@stewartinc.com


Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      5 
 

MEP Engineer 

Atlantec Engineers, PA 
3221 Blue Ridge Road #113 
Raleigh, NC 27612 

(919) 571-1111 
atlantecengineers.com 
 
Atlantec Engineers, PA is a professional engineering firm with offices in Kinston, North Carolina and in Raleigh, North 
Carolina, providing plumbing, mechanical, fire-protection, and electrical engineering services. Their clients include 
architects, contractors, and local governments from Raleigh to the coast. Atlantec Engineers, PA was developed from 
James B. DelPapa, Consulting Engineer, established in 1985, and has experience in the design of schools, office buildings, 

retail facilities, healthcare facilities, and churches throughout the eastern part of the United States. Atlantec Engineers, PA 
provides efficient and economical designs to its clients, and is committed to providing quality-engineering services in a 
timely manner. 
 

James B. DelPapa, Jr., PE 
Mechanical Engineer  
Jim, part owner of Atlantec 
Engineers, graduated from 
North Carolina State University 
with a Bachelor of Science 
degree in Mechanical 

Engineering. The plumbing, mechanical, and fire 
sprinkler designs are prepared under his direction. Jim 
also has management responsibilities including client 
relations, project scheduling and coordination, 
accounting, etc. He has been working in the 
construction field since 1978 and in the engineering 
field since 1983. 
Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #022035 

 David J. Whitney, PE 
Electrical Engineer  
David is the president of Atlantec 
Engineers.  David joined Jim 
DelPapa Jr. and his father James 
DelPapa Sr. in 1992 to form 
Atlantec Engineers. David and 

Jim Jr. share the management responsibilities for the 
day-to-day operation of Atlantec. David’s primary role 
is the supervision of the electrical design.  David has a 
bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from 
Georgia Tech and a Master’s degree in Electrical 
Engineering from Syracuse University. 
Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #017382 

 
Selected Experience: Dare County Eight EMS Station & Fire Department Renovations/Replacements, 
Kure Beach Town Hall/Police Department Renovation & New Fire Department, Warren County 
Emergency Services Facility, Franklin County Plaza Fitup, Edenton Police Department, Williamston Fire 
Department Addition, Williamston Police Department, River Bend Town Hall & Police Department Study, 
Liberty Police Department, Selma Town Hall Fitup, Fuquay-Varina Fire Station #2 Addition, Kinston Fire 
Station #1, Kinston Fire Station #2, Kinston Fire Station #3, Raleigh Police Department Training Facility HVAC, Raleigh 
City Hall Renovations, Raleigh Police Headquarters Renovations, Raleigh Fire Stations #2-5-15 Renovations, Raleigh 
New Fire Station #22, Carolina Beach Bathhouse & Ocean Rescue Facility 

*projects in bold were completed with Oakley Collier Architects 
 
 
 
 
 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      6 
 

Civil Engineer 

The Wooten Company 
120 North Boylan Avenue 
Raleigh, NC 27603  
(919) 828-0531 
thewootencompany.com 
 
The Wooten Company is a privately held, multi-disciplinary firm with 92 employees focused on providing municipal 
engineering and architectural services. Founded in 1936 and incorporated in 1949 in North Carolina, L.E. Wooten and 
Company (dba The Wooten Company) is now in its 85th year of continuous operation and is licensed by the State of 
North Carolina to practice engineering and surveying (NC Certificate of Registration F-0115). Their recent project history 

across the company, and particularly in their Eastern Division have encountered many pump station projects including new 
designs as well as retrofits. Team members include: 
 

Lester Lowe, PE  
Civil Project Manager 
Lester Lowe brings over 35 
years of experience on a 
variety of public and private 
sector civil engineering 
projects. A seasoned leader in 

the industry, he has successfully developed and 
managed teams through complex, full-service projects 
consisting of pre-design analysis phases (i.e. due 
diligence, alternatives analysis, stormwater 
management pavement assessment, and environmental 
assessments) through complete design fulfillment and 
construction administration support. Additionally, he is 
well versed in all aspects of full site civil design, 
permitting and construction phase services for 
institutional, commercial, industrial and residential 
projects. Lester leads the Civil/Site Development 
Practice. 
Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #018511 

 Ana Wadsworth, PE 
Civil Project Engineer 
Ana Wadsworth is a Project 
Manager/Engineer for the Site 
Development Group at The 
Wooten Company located in 
Raleigh, NC. Ms. Wadsworth 

has almost thirteen years of experience in the site/land 
development industry and continues to expand her 
knowledge for both public and private sector projects 
in the area. Her background mainly includes project site 
design, permitting & construction administration for 
residential, commercial, and industrial projects. Ms. 
Wadsworth is responsible for site layout, grading and 
earthwork analysis, erosion and sediment control 
design, stormwater management, storm drainage and 
wastewater system design, water distribution, & 
roadway design. 
Registrations: Professional Engineer NC #042389 

 
Selected Experience: Town of Angier Town Hall, Princeville Fire Station, Princeville Public Works Facility, 
NCDOT Winfall Maintenance Office Building & Site Design, Weitron Inc. Building Upfit, Green Mill Run Watershed 
(Greenville), Sunset Avenue Road & Utilities Repairs (Tarboro), WCPSS Bryan Road Elementary School, WCPSS Fuquay-
Varina High School Renovation, WCPSS Willow Spring High School, Novo Nordisk Site Design (Clayton)  

*projects in bold were completed with Oakley Collier Architects 

 

 

 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      7 
 

3.  Experience  
Global TransPark Aviation Industrial Shell Building 
Kinston, NC 

Global Transpark is multimodal industrial park & airport strategically located on the east coast of the United States to 

support the manufacturing and logistics needs of the aviation, aerospace, defense, emergency response, and 
advanced materials industries. OCA completed the 100,800 SF industrial aviation shell building #7 on the GTP 
campus in collaboration with Shelco, LLC as a design-build project. The building includes three large roll-up doors, 8 
loading docks, and 4 storefront entrances which provides flexibility for future tenants. We recently completed repairs & 
renovations to the 8,686 SF office portion of the 306,895 GSF Pactiv LLC manufacturing facility on the GTP campus.  
Project Reference: Hunter Burnette, Senior Vice President, Shelco, LLC, 3201 Beechleak Court, Suite 401, Raleigh, NC 
27604, (919) 877-2600, hburnette@shelcoinc.com 

  



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      8 
 

Greenville Emergency Operations Center 
Greenville, NC 

Oakley Collier designed a new 4,116 SF emergency operations center with multipurpose classroom, break room, offices, 

storage, conference room, server room with UPS backup system, and specialized communication & security systems. The 
large classroom can be split into a conference room, debriefing room, & command area for use during an emergency. 
The facility complies with FEMA regulations for high wind & terrorism stand-off requirements. The complex is surrounded 
by dense multifamily buildings, which required special consideration for building placement & access. It is also located on 
the same parcel with Fire Station No. 6 and the Fire/Rescue Department Training Center. It was completed in 2013. 
Project Reference: Lisa Kirby, City Engineer, PO Box 7207, Greenville, NC 27834, (252) 329-4683, 
lkirby@greenvillenc.gov 

    



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      9 
 

Warren County Emergency Services & Operations Facility  
Warrenton, NC 

New 14,300 SF emergency services facility to house a 

primary EMS station; Emergency Services Command 
Center; Emergency Operations Center; Back-up E-911 
PSAP; Emergency Personnel Training Center; and Sheriff's 
Department satellite office. The new facility includes 8 
vehicle bays, 6 sleep rooms, back-up 911, EMS offices, 
Sheriff’s offices, large training/EOC room, conference 
rooms, laundry, central supply, copy/work room, press 

room, storage, dayroom, kitchen, & restrooms. Completed in 
2019. 
Project Reference: Terrance Williams, Facilities / 
Buildings & Grounds Director, Warren County, 710 US 
Highway 158 Business West, Warrenton, NC 27589, 
(252) 257-5555, terrancewilliams@warrencountync.gov 
 

  



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      10 
 

Craven County Administration & EOC/911 Facility 
Rocky Mount, NC 

Oakley Collier is currently designing the new 9,040 SF administrative building for Craven County to replace existing 

facilities damaged by hurricane Florence and subsequent flooding in September 2018. The facility will house the Craven 
County Board of Education, Administration, Tax Department, Development Services, Information Technology, joint meeting 
spaces, and the Emergency Management Center. The Craven County Emergency Management Center includes their 
Emergency Operations Center and E-911 Center. This project is on hold.  
Project Reference: Gene Hodges, Assistant County Manager, Craven County, 406 Craven Street, New Bern, NC 
28560, (252) 636-6600, mhodges@cravencountync.gov 

  

1st Floor 2nd Floor 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      11 
 

Dare County Eight EMS Station Renovations/Replacements 
Dare County, NC 

This project started as a conditions assessment in 2017 that helped determine the current and future needs of the existing 

eight EMS stations throughout the county. Site, architectural, structural, plumbing, HVAC, and electrical systems were all 
evaluated. This study identified four of the eight facilities that were functionally obsolete, along with many stations that 
have inadequate ambulance bays, building components that have well-exceeded their life expectancy, the need for 
additional space, inadequate site conditions, a lack of preventative maintenance, and no controlled access systems.  
 
In 2021, the County issued the service order under the Capital Improvement Plan to replace and/or renovate all eight 
EMS stations. Stations #1-Kill Devil Hills, #4-Southern Shores, #5-Southern Shores, and #6-Rodanthe will be replaced 

with a joint-use EMS & Fire Department. Stations #2-Manteo and #3-Frisco will be renovated & expanded for a public 
meeting area & additional sleeping rooms. Station #7-Med Flight will include new crew quarters and expansion of the 
Med Flight Hanger. Station #8-Manns Harbor includes an expansion & renovation of the existing fire station bays, a new 
separate EMS station with 2 bays, and possible renovation of the on-site community center. These projects are currently 
under design.  
Project Reference: Dave Clawson, Finance Director, Dare County, 954 Marshall C Collins Drive, Room 215, Manteo, 
NC 27954, (252) 475-5730, davec@darenc.com 

  

#1 Kill Devil Hills 

#8 Manns Harbor 

#1 Kill Devil Hills 

#6 Rodanthe 



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      12 
 

Kure Beach Town Hall & Police Department Renovation 
Kure Beach, NC 

Oakley Collier provided plans for an expansion of the existing town 

hall building, renovation of the existing fire department for use by the 
police department, and construction of a new fire department on 
adjacent land. Redesign of site circulation and traffic flow had to be 
creative to accommodate the restrictive site. The project was 
completed in 2 phases, with phase 1 started as a feasibility study in 
2016. The existing Town Hall/Police Department is 15,128 SF with 
a 4,320 SF addition. The new fire department is 9,214 SF and 

includes 4 apparatus bays, training room, wellness/workout room, 
day room, sleep rooms, apparatus support & 
laundry/decontamination room, kitchen, offices, and storage. 
Additional parking and driveway for the fire department was also 
added. Completed in 2019. 
Project Reference: Allen Oliver, Town Commissioner, Town of Kure 
Beach, 117 Settlers Lane, Kure Beach, NC 28449, (910) 458-

8216, a.oliver@tokb.org 
 
  



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      13 
 

Nash County Emergency Services & Auxiliary PSAP Facility 
Rocky Mount, NC 

The facility was designed to serve as a central command center 

for the County in the event of a natural disaster. This new 12,527 
square foot Emergency Services building includes a kitchen, day 
room, meeting room, sleeping rooms with showers, offices, fitness 
room, auxiliary PSAP & 911 telecom, utility, storage, and laundry. 
It also includes 4 truck bays with 8 roll up doors. The facility 
includes storm-resistant windows, generators with battery 
backups, 2-way radios, and complies with regulations included 

in 09 NCAC 06C. Completed in 2011. 
Project Reference: Brian Brantley, Emergency Services Director, Nash County, 120 West Washington Street, Suite 
1102, Nashville, NC 27856, (252) 459-9805, brian.brantley@nashcountync.gov 

  



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      14 
 

4.  Workload 
 

The level of staffing maintained at Oakley Collier Architects 
allows us to manage millions of dollars in our construction 

workload. Our management and production staff handles 
multiple design and construction projects simultaneously, 
totaling more than $70 million in construction dollar volume 
annually.  
 
Currently, we have ample availability within our staff and 

workload to handle your project. 

 

 

5.  Design Approach 
 
A successful creative design process starts with understanding 

your expectations for the total project. The beginning phases of 
the process - Programming, Schematic Design & Design 
Development - usually have the most significant impact on the 
budget & rest of the design.  It is within these phases that major 
choices are made on project priorities, as well as the basic 
design decisions that will create a basis for specific details later 

in the project. Establishing the project goals & objectives is the 
first step in the organizational format of the design process.  
 
Typically, the programming process begins by conducting an initial goal and visioning session with Town leadership, 
where the design team can learn and understand the history and leadership’s expectations for the overall project. From 
that goal-setting session, a timeline for staff / department head interviews is established and those interviews are usually 
conducted over a period of two to three days. The result of those individual department interviews begins to create a 

priority list for space recommendations, as well as form the groundwork (i.e., square footage) for establishing a project 
budget. In addition, the understanding of ‘how big is big’ takes shape and an overall building size is determined.  The list 
of priorities is typically catalogued by the following categories: 

1. Absolute needs: Regulatory requirements, Building Code/ADA compliance, schedule goals, budget 
management, management goals, etc. 

2. Specific wants: Efficiency upgrades, workflow organization, image & design priorities, desired expansion, etc. 
3. Future goals: including proposed expansion - or other items the Town would like to address. 

 
Our #1 priority is to identify your goals and then work diligently to meet or exceed your expectations. Being available to 
you will not only provide the necessary communication needed, but will also ensure the success of the project! 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Annual Workload (in Construction Dollars), millions

Yearly Work
Volume

Current Work
Volume

Workload
(Manpower)
Availability



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      15 
 

For the project such as yours, Oakley Collier Architects follows the conventional five design phases. The work in each of 
these phases builds upon the one before, with all design work coming together in the successful construction of the building. 
 

  

Schematic 
Design

•Conduct End User interviews 
•Determine programming
•Provide preliminary plans, elevations, & cost estimates
•Submission to Owner for review & approval

Design 
Development

•Develop engineering designs
•Complete exterior elevations
•Estimate probable construction costs
•Submission to Owner for review & approval

Construction 
Documents

•Finalize architectural & engineering plans & elevations
•Produce specfications manual
•Finalize project budget
•Obtain approvals from Owner
•Submit to regulatory agencies

Bidding & 
Negotiations

•Respond to bidder questions as required
•Obtain contractor bids
•Analyze construction bids
•Prepare construction contracts for award

Construction 
Administration

•Regular site visits
•Review shop drawings
•Selection of finishes
•Review contractor's applications for payment
•Coordinate close out & opening services



Washington County – Airport Terminal/EOC Building      16 
 

6.  Li t igat ion/Arbit rat ion 
 

Oakley Collier Architects has no previous litigation or arbitration in which we have been involved in the past ten years. 

 

7.  References 
 

Oakley Collier Architects and our team members have successfully completed projects without major legal or technical 
problems. Please feel free to contact the following Oakley Collier clients listed in the project experience and below for a 
reference on our performance. 
 

Craven County  Dare County 

Gene Hodges, Assistant County Manager  
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 
(252) 636-6600 
mhodges@cravencountync.gov 
 

 Dave Clawson, Finance Director 
954 Marshall C. Collins Drive, Room 215 
Manteo, NC 27954 
(252) 475-5730 
davec@darenc.com 

Vance County  Town of Kure Beach 

Jorden McMillen, Deputy County Manager 
156 Church Street, Suite 3 
Henderson, NC 27536 
(252) 738-2091 
jmcmillen@vancecounty.org 
 

 Allen Oliver, Town Commissioner 
117 Settlers Lane 
Kure Beach, NC 28449 
(910) 458-8216 
a.oliver@tokb.org 

City of Rocky Mount  Carteret County 

Michael Baughn, Property & Risk Division Mgr. 
PO Box 1180 

Rocky Mount, NC 27802 
(252) 972-1202 
michael.baughn@rockymountnc.gov 
 

 Gene Foxworth, Planning Director  
210 Turner Street 

Beaufort, NC 28516 
(252) 728-8545 
eugene.foxworth@carteretcountync.gov 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 5 
 

DATE: April 3, 2022 

ITEM: Pre-K – 12 New School Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 
Mr. Potter will speak to the Board on the abovementioned subject. 
 
See attached. 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 



Agenda Item Memo Page 1 of 4 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: April 3rd, 2023 MEMO Date: March 31, 2023                 ITEM:  
SUBJECT: PK12 School Update & LGC Application Approval 
DEPARTMENT: Multiple (Aviation; Emergency Management) 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Davenport School Project Funding Discussion Materials (dated 3/27/23) (13 pages)
B- Project Budget Comparisons Spreadsheet (dated 3/30/23) (1 page)

PURPOSE: To discuss the latest updates on the PK12 school project, including ongoing efforts to reduce its 
final estimated guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”) shown as $72,016,519 in the attached Project Budget 
Comparisons Spreadsheet, and to discuss and approve the submission by staff of an application to the Local 
Government Commission “LGC” of the State of North Carolina, seeking approval to move forward with 
borrowing approximately $22,698,000 to be financed over a 20 year period as shown within the attached 
Davenport Materials dated 3/27/23 (based on a GMP estimate of $70,700,000). 

BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:  
- The County and School System have been discussing the need to upgrade outdated and inefficient school

facilities going back many years, as well as discussing the need to consider consolidation of its facilities in
more recent years due to a shrinking public student body and overall funding constraints.

- In early 2022 the County and School System agreed to apply for, and subsequently received a total of $50M
(in 2 separate installments of $40M and $10M each) from the NC Needs Based Public School Capital Fund
(“NBPSCF”) Grant program based on an application outlining the construction of a new consolidated PK12
facility intended to house all public school children in the county (except early college) on one site partially
located where Pines Elementary School existed at that time.

- A steering committee consisting of representatives from both the County and School System, along with a
variety of outside consultants and representatives was formed, and has met continuously to take the lead on
developing a project timeline and plan of action to complete major tasks, and advise the respective Boards
of County Commissioners and Education related to their respective project decisions.

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 4 
 

- Initial project action items including the following: 
 

o Procuring SfL+a Architects as the project designer  
o Developing and mutually adopting a Funding Agreement between the respective Boards 
o Procuring Metcon Buildings & Infrastructure as the prime construction manager at risk 
o Procuring additional land/acreage at the project site by the County 
o Preliminary surveying and engineering 
o Demolition of Pines Elementary School, which had recently been vacated due to long standing air 

quality concerns, and to expedite the overall project timeline/logistics to save time and associated 
costs of delays 

 
- Due to an unanticipated 30-60 day delay in the completion of the final designs; unforeseen extreme 

inflationary pressures during the overall project development period (experienced across virtually all 
sectors of the local, state, and federal economy including construction trades specifically); and rising loan 
interest rates caused by Federal Reserve efforts to calm the extreme inflationary pressure through interest 
rate hikes, the overall estimated project budget has gradually and steadily increased over the last eight 
months to its currently projected GMP. 
 

- This increase (the full scale of which was not known until the completion of the recent bidding phase of the 
project in mid-March) also led to an unexpected increase in the amount of the locally funded loan required 
to be borrowed by the County to ultimately meet the funding difference between the final GMP to pay for 
and undertake the project, and the grant funding already secured to pay for a large part of those cost, as 
more particularly shown within the attached Project Budget Comparisons Spreadsheet. 
 

- The steering committee also met continuously to discuss revisions to the overall scope of the designed 
project. 

 
o The County’s focus has been, and remains to insure an appropriate balance is struck between 

removing all unnecessary or optional upgrades or design features, while retaining all critically 
essential components. 
 

o Initial project planning called for the originally projected debt service (based on a much lower 
projected GMP) to be managed with restricted sales tax revenues already received by the County 
which would be committed toward payment of the debt service, along with an additional revenue 
stream of $400K per year to be paid by the School System to the County to lease the new PK12 
facility with such payments also going toward the debt service obligations.   

 
 It was not originally intended, or considered necessary to consider a potential tax rate 

increase in order to generate additional revenues to use in order to meet the debt service 
obligations projected at that time.   

 
 Unfortunately, due to the substantially increased debt service projections, a tax rate 

increase may now need to be seriously considered in order to meet these higher obligation 
amounts, unless additional revenues are received, or unless extreme changes are made to 
some other County services to produce a substantial offsetting expenditure reduction.  

 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 3 of 4 
 

o Although a variety of alternate upgrades were initially designed and intended to produce long term 
savings in exchange for higher upfront costs, due to increasing budgetary pressure, an additional 
effort to remove all non-essential design elements was recently undertaken by staff, the architect 
and builder in an effort to minimize the final GMP. 

 
 The County and School System are working together to seek and secure additional grant 

and legislative funding to offset the higher than anticipated final GMP and associated debt 
service amounts in an effort to mitigate potential impacts to tax rate considerations as 
originally intended. 
 

 It should also be noted that as of 3/31/23, both the architect and builder have voluntarily 
agreed to take a reduction in their originally contracted profit margins to assist in further 
lowering the final GMP.   
 

 If additional funding is secured, it could reduce the higher than anticipated debt service 
obligation pressure facing the County in these latest projections, and may even permit the 
reinstatement of certain desired alternatives and upgrades through a change order process 
depending on the amount, timing, and availability of such funding in relation to the project 
schedule. 
 

 Ideally, the County could wait until additional funding is actually secured, but in the current 
inflationary market, time equates to money, and staff feels that not moving forward at this 
point risks substantial further increased costs as a result of continuing inflation, rising loan 
interest rates, and further time delays to restructure and rebid the project. 

 
- The County also procured the services of Davenport Public Finance of Davenport & Company, LLC to 

advise it in regard to the anticipated debt service projections, and to assist it in applying to the LGC for pre-
approval of the subject loan as required by law for most similar projects undertaken by local governments 
in this state.  Sanford Holshouser was also engaged to provide legal and loan closing services. 
 

o The County issued an RFP for lending proposals related to the anticipated loan and received two 
proposals for financing with the lowest interest rate option being 4.02% contingent upon a loan 
closing taking place before mid-May, 2023. 

 
o The LGC Application will incur a onetime $1,250 charge payable to the State Treasurer to offset 

their cost of reviewing and processing the application.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 4 of 4 
 

- The following represents a rough outline of the remaining action items staff believes are reasonably 
necessary to keep the project moving forward and on track in the short term: 

 
o 4/3/23(Regular BOCC Mtg)  

 Review the final GMP provided by Metcon 
 Consider the estimated impact of this GMP on the projected final debt service 
 Authorize staff to proceed with submitting the loan approval application to the LGC 

based on these same projections 
 

o 4/4/23 Staff submits the LGC Application to be heard at the 5/3/23 LGC Meeting 
 

o 4/3/23-5/2/23 
 Hold any additional meetings required of the steering committee and/or between the 

County and School System to:  
• review and approve any final scope changes 
• make final changes to the current preliminary funding agreement  
• review and approve any updated construction timelines/changes 
• finalize any remaining action items before the 5/1/23 BOCC Mtg 

 
o 5/1/23 (Regular BOCC Mtg) 

 Vote on a Resolution to give final approval for the financing and to approve the 
following: 

• Installment Financing Contract 
• Deed of Trust to provide the lender with a collateral interest in the project site 
• Disbursement Agent Agreement 

 
o 5/3/23 LGC approval of loan application 
o 5/4-5/12 Loan Closing 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S) BY STAFF:  

- Discuss the latest projected GMP figures for the PK12 school, and anticipated debt service 
obligations associated with the final estimated loan amount. 
 
 

- VOTE: to direct staff to move forward with submitting the loan approval application due 
on 4/4/23 to the LGC based on the latest estimated debt service projections. 

 



Member NYSE|FINRA|SIPC

School Project Funding Discussion Materials

Washington County, North Carolina

March 27, 2023



PreK-12 School Project Budget Overview

PreK-12 School Project Schedule and Budget Overview

March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 2

 The current estimated total project cost is $78,442,500 as shown 
in the table to the right. 

– The County and Schools have been awarded two grants that will 
pay a portion of the total project cost: 

1. Needs Based Public School Capital Fund (“NBPSCF”) Grant 
of $50,000,000

2. DOT and Energy Conservation Grant of $150,000.

– The Board of Education anticipates utilizing $3,500,000 of 
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Funding 
(“ESSER”) for this project.

– Additionally, there is $1,500,000 of School Capital outlay Funds 
that are anticipated to be available for project funding.

– $500,000 of these available School Reserves are assumed 
to be applied to project costs and the remaining $1,000,000 
will be applied to debt service costs.

A B
Descript ion Amount

1 Project Costs
2 Pre-Construction 1,654,519         
3 Construction 68,345,481       
4 Architect 5,600,000         
5 Contingency 2,100,000         
6 Subtotal 77,700,000   

7 Soft  Costs
8 Land 500,000             
9 Technology1 -                      

10 FF&E2 -                      
11 Cost of Issuance Estimate 242,500             
12 Subtotal 742,500        

13 Grand Total Project Cost Est imate 78,442,500   

14 Less: Federal/State Grants and Appropriat ions
15 NBPSCF Grant (50,000,000)      
16 DOT / Energy Conservation Grant (150,000)            
17 ESSER (3,500,000)        
18 Subtotal (53,650,000)  

19 Less: Sales Tax Reimbursement (Estimate) (1,595,009)        

20 Net Funding Requirement 23,197,491   

21 Less: School Capital Outlay Fund Balance
22 FY 2022 Balance (1,246,258)        
23 FY 2023 Surplus3 (253,742)            
24 Reserve For Debt Service 1,000,000         
25 Subtotal (500,000)       

26 Net Borrowing Requirement 22,697,491   
1 Board of Education is providing Technology.
2 Board of Education is using existing FF&E.
3 Restricted Sales tax of $653,742 less annual capital funding of $400,000.



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 3

Estimated Amortization Schedule

Sources and Uses Summary

Annual Debt Service Payments

Financing Assumptions and Amortization Schedule

 -

 0.5

 1.0

 1.5

 2.0

 2.5

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

M
ill

io
ns

Principal Interest

Financing Assumptions:
Closing Date: Mid-May
Truist Acceptance Deadline: March 28th
Truist Closing Deadline: May 19th
First Interest Payment: 12/1/2023
First Principal Payment: 12/1/2024
Final Maturity: 12/1/2042

1-Year Interest Only Period

Fiscal 
Year

Interest Rate Principal Interest Total

2024 4.02% -                   491,714          491,714          
2025 4.02% 1,195,000       912,460          2,107,460       
2026 4.02% 1,195,000       864,421          2,059,421       
2027 4.02% 1,195,000       816,382          2,011,382       
2028 4.02% 1,195,000       768,343          1,963,343       
2029 4.02% 1,195,000       720,304          1,915,304       
2030 4.02% 1,195,000       672,265          1,867,265       
2031 4.02% 1,195,000       624,226          1,819,226       
2032 4.02% 1,195,000       576,187          1,771,187       
2033 4.02% 1,195,000       528,148          1,723,148       
2034 4.02% 1,195,000       480,109          1,675,109       
2035 4.02% 1,195,000       432,070          1,627,070       
2036 4.02% 1,195,000       384,031          1,579,031       
2037 4.02% 1,194,000       335,992          1,529,992       
2038 4.02% 1,194,000       287,993          1,481,993       
2039 4.02% 1,194,000       239,994          1,433,994       
2040 4.02% 1,194,000       191,995          1,385,995       
2041 4.02% 1,194,000       143,996          1,337,996       
2042 4.02% 1,194,000       95,998            1,289,998       
2043 4.02% 1,194,000       47,999            1,241,999       
Total 22,698,000 9,614,622   32,312,622 

Note: Assumes Truist 10-Year Par Call interest rate of 4.02%. 

Note: Cost of Issuance Expenses would be deducted from loan proceeds.

Descript ion Amount

1 Sources:
2 Par Amount 22,698,000       
3 Total Sources 22,698,000   

4 Uses:
5 Capital Project Fund 22,454,991       
6 Cost of Issuance 242,500            
7 Subtotal Project Funding 22,697,491       
8 Rounding 509                    
9 Total Uses 22,698,000   



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 4

Debt Affordability Analysis
School Capital Outlay Fund

$22,698,000 Financing – 1-Year Interest Only Period

Note: Per County Staff, assumes FY 2024 value of a penny is $94,000 and is growing by 1.00% thereafter.

No Tax Impact
A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Debt Service Cash Flow Surplus (Deficit)

FY
Proposed Debt 

Service

Annual 
Capital 

Contribution1 
Project Equity 
Contribution2 Total

Restricted 
Schools Tax3

Lease 
Payments 

from School 
Board4

General Fund 
Contribution

Total Revenues 
Available

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Revenue From 
Prior Tax Impact

General Capital 
Reserve 
Utilized

Adjusted Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Estimated 
Incremental Tax 

Equivalent

School Capital 
Outlay Fund 

Reserve 
Balance5

       1,246,258 
2023                         -          400,000        500,000            900,000       653,742                     -                            -              653,742          (246,258)                          -            (246,258)                                 -   -        1,000,000 
2024           491,714        400,000                      -              891,714       640,000                     -                            -              640,000          (251,714)                          -            (251,714)                                 -   -            748,286 
2025       2,107,460        100,000                      -          2,207,460       640,000       400,000            419,174        1,459,174          (748,286)                          -            (748,286)                                 -   -                          -   
2026       2,059,421        100,000                      -          2,159,421       640,000       400,000        1,119,421        2,159,421                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2027       2,011,382        100,000                      -          2,111,382       640,000       400,000        1,071,382        2,111,382                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2028       1,963,343        100,000                      -          2,063,343       640,000       400,000        1,023,343        2,063,343                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2029       1,915,304        100,000                      -          2,015,304       640,000       400,000            975,304        2,015,304                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2030       1,867,265        100,000                      -          1,967,265       640,000       400,000            927,265        1,967,265                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2031       1,819,226        100,000                      -          1,919,226       640,000       400,000            879,226        1,919,226                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2032       1,771,187        100,000                      -          1,871,187       640,000       400,000            831,187        1,871,187                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2033       1,723,148        100,000                      -          1,823,148       640,000       400,000            783,148        1,823,148                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2034       1,675,109        100,000                      -          1,775,109       640,000       400,000            735,109        1,775,109                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2035       1,627,070        100,000                      -          1,727,070       640,000       400,000            687,070        1,727,070                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2036       1,579,031        100,000                      -          1,679,031       640,000       400,000            639,031        1,679,031                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2037       1,529,992        100,000                      -          1,629,992       640,000       400,000            589,992        1,629,992                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2038       1,481,993        100,000                      -          1,581,993       640,000       400,000            541,993        1,581,993                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2039       1,433,994        100,000                      -          1,533,994       640,000       400,000            493,994        1,533,994                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2040       1,385,995        100,000                      -          1,485,995       640,000       400,000            445,995        1,485,995                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2041       1,337,996        100,000                      -          1,437,996       640,000       400,000            397,996        1,437,996                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2042       1,289,998        100,000                      -          1,389,998       640,000       400,000            349,998        1,389,998                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   
2043       1,241,999        100,000                      -          1,341,999       640,000       400,000            301,999        1,341,999                          -                            -                            -                                   -   -                          -   

 Total Tax  Effect 0 .00¢

Total 32,312,622   6,400,000  500,000      39,212,622    13,212,622    Total -                     
1 Includes $400,000 annual funding in FY 2023 and FY 2024 and $100,000 thereafter per the Washington County School Funding agreement. Note, capital funding shown does not include annual accumulated lottery funding available to fund school capital and debt service 

that is currently planned to be made available for capital maintenance at other schools. 
2 FY 2023 includes $500,000 for a land purchase and FY 2024 includes a $1,000,000 County Contribution to the Project.
3FY 2023 Estimated Article 40 and 42 1/2 Cent Restricted Sales Tax was $653,742. Assumes $640,000 thereafter. 
4County School Board has agreed to make lease payments to the County of $400,000 per year to pay for for 30 years beginning in FY 2025.
5 FYE 2022 estimated School Capital Outlay Fund Balance per County Audit.

 In addition to the capital outlay funding shown above, the 
County will provide an annual operating supplement 
funding of $1,735,000 from General Fund Revenues.



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 5

Debt Affordability Analysis
School Capital Outlay Fund

$22,698,000 Financing – 1-Year Interest Only Period
Equivalent Tax Impact as Needed

Note: Per County Staff, assumes FY 2024 value of a penny is $94,000 and is growing by 1.00% thereafter.

 In addition to the capital outlay funding shown above, the 
County will provide an annual operating supplement 
funding of $1,735,000 from General Fund Revenues.

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O
Debt Service Cash Flow Surplus (Deficit)

FY
Proposed Debt 

Service

Annual 
Capital 

Contribution1 
Project Equity 
Contribution2 Total

Restricted 
Schools Tax3

Lease 
Payments 

from School 
Board4

General Fund 
Contribution

Total Revenues 
Available

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Revenue From 
Prior Tax Impact

General Capital 
Reserve 
Utilized

Adjusted Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Estimated 
Incremental Tax 

Equivalent

School Capital 
Outlay Fund 

Reserve 
Balance5

       1,246,258 
2023                         -          400,000        500,000            900,000       653,742                     -                            -              653,742          (246,258)                          -            (246,258)                                 -   -        1,000,000 
2024           491,714        400,000                      -              891,714       640,000                     -                            -              640,000          (251,714)                          -            (251,714)                                 -   -            748,286 
2025       2,107,460        100,000                      -          2,207,460       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,167,460)                          -            (748,286)                 (419,174) 4.42¢                          -   
2026       2,059,421        100,000                      -          2,159,421       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,119,421)            423,366                          -                   (696,055) 7.26¢                          -   
2027       2,011,382        100,000                      -          2,111,382       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,071,382)        1,130,615                          -                       59,233 -               59,233 
2028       1,963,343        100,000                      -          2,063,343       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,023,343)        1,141,921                          -                     118,578 -            177,812 
2029       1,915,304        100,000                      -          2,015,304       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (975,304)        1,153,340                          -                     178,037 -            355,848 
2030       1,867,265        100,000                      -          1,967,265       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (927,265)        1,164,874                          -                     237,609 -            593,457 
2031       1,819,226        100,000                      -          1,919,226       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (879,226)        1,176,522                          -                     297,297 -            890,754 
2032       1,771,187        100,000                      -          1,871,187       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (831,187)        1,188,288                          -                     357,101 -        1,247,855 
2033       1,723,148        100,000                      -          1,823,148       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (783,148)        1,200,170                          -                     417,023 -        1,664,878 
2034       1,675,109        100,000                      -          1,775,109       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (735,109)        1,212,172                          -                     477,064 -        2,141,941 
2035       1,627,070        100,000                      -          1,727,070       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (687,070)        1,224,294                          -                     537,224 -        2,679,165 
2036       1,579,031        100,000                      -          1,679,031       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (639,031)        1,236,537                          -                     597,506 -        3,276,671 
2037       1,529,992        100,000                      -          1,629,992       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (589,992)        1,248,902                          -                     658,911 -        3,935,582 
2038       1,481,993        100,000                      -          1,581,993       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (541,993)        1,261,391                          -                     719,398 -        4,654,980 
2039       1,433,994        100,000                      -          1,533,994       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (493,994)        1,274,005                          -                     780,011 -        5,434,991 
2040       1,385,995        100,000                      -          1,485,995       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (445,995)        1,286,745                          -                     840,750 -        6,275,741 
2041       1,337,996        100,000                      -          1,437,996       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (397,996)        1,299,613                          -                     901,616 -        7,177,357 
2042       1,289,998        100,000                      -          1,389,998       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (349,998)        1,312,609                          -                     962,611 -        8,139,969 
2043       1,241,999        100,000                      -          1,341,999       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (301,999)        1,325,735                          -                 1,023,736 -        9,163,704 

 Total Tax  Effect 11.67¢

Total 32,312,622   6,400,000  500,000      39,212,622    -                     Total -                     
1 Includes $400,000 annual funding in FY 2023 and FY 2024 and $100,000 thereafter per the Washington County School Funding agreement. Note, capital funding shown does not include annual accumulated lottery funding available to fund school capital and debt service 

that is currently planned to be made available for capital maintenance at other schools. 
2 FY 2023 includes $500,000 for a land purchase and FY 2024 includes a $1,000,000 County Contribution to the Project.
3FY 2023 Estimated Article 40 and 42 1/2 Cent Restricted Sales Tax was $653,742. Assumes $640,000 thereafter. 
4County School Board has agreed to make lease payments to the County of $400,000 per year to pay for for 30 years beginning in FY 2025.
5 FYE 2022 estimated School Capital Outlay Fund Balance per County Audit.



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 6

Debt Affordability Analysis
School Capital Outlay Fund

$22,698,000 Financing – 1-Year Interest Only Period
Equivalent FY 2024 Upfront Tax Impact

Note: Per County Staff, assumes FY 2024 value of a penny is $94,000 and is growing by 1.00% thereafter.

 In addition to the capital outlay funding shown above, the 
County will provide an annual operating supplement 
funding of $1,735,000 from General Fund Revenues.

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O
Debt Service Cash Flow Surplus (Deficit)

FY
Proposed Debt 

Service

Annual 
Capital 

Contribution1 
Project Equity 
Contribution2 Total

Restricted 
Schools Tax3

Lease 
Payments 

from School 
Board4

General Fund 
Contribution

Total Revenues 
Available

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Revenue From 
Prior Tax Impact

General Capital 
Reserve 
Utilized

Adjusted Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Estimated 
Incremental Tax 

Equivalent

School Capital 
Outlay Fund 

Reserve 
Balance5

       1,246,258 
2023                         -          400,000        500,000            900,000       653,742                     -                            -              653,742          (246,258)                          -            (246,258)                                 -   -        1,000,000 
2024           491,714        400,000                      -              891,714       640,000                     -                            -              640,000          (251,714)            775,500                          -                     523,786 8.25¢        1,523,786 
2025       2,107,460        100,000                      -          2,207,460       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,167,460)            783,255          (384,205)                                 -   -        1,139,581 
2026       2,059,421        100,000                      -          2,159,421       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,119,421)            791,088          (328,333)                                 -   -            811,248 
2027       2,011,382        100,000                      -          2,111,382       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,071,382)            798,998          (272,383)                                 -   -            538,865 
2028       1,963,343        100,000                      -          2,063,343       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,023,343)            806,988          (216,354)                                 -   -            322,511 
2029       1,915,304        100,000                      -          2,015,304       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (975,304)            815,058          (160,245)                                 -   -            162,265 
2030       1,867,265        100,000                      -          1,967,265       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (927,265)            823,209          (104,056)                                 -   -               58,210 
2031       1,819,226        100,000                      -          1,919,226       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (879,226)            831,441             (47,785)                                 -   -               10,425 
2032       1,771,187        100,000                      -          1,871,187       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (831,187)            839,755                          -                          8,569 -               18,994 
2033       1,723,148        100,000                      -          1,823,148       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (783,148)            848,153                          -                       65,005 -               83,999 
2034       1,675,109        100,000                      -          1,775,109       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (735,109)            856,634                          -                     121,526 -            205,525 
2035       1,627,070        100,000                      -          1,727,070       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (687,070)            865,201                          -                     178,131 -            383,656 
2036       1,579,031        100,000                      -          1,679,031       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (639,031)            873,853                          -                     234,822 -            618,478 
2037       1,529,992        100,000                      -          1,629,992       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (589,992)            882,591                          -                     292,600 -            911,078 
2038       1,481,993        100,000                      -          1,581,993       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (541,993)            891,417                          -                     349,424 -        1,260,503 
2039       1,433,994        100,000                      -          1,533,994       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (493,994)            900,331                          -                     406,337 -        1,666,840 
2040       1,385,995        100,000                      -          1,485,995       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (445,995)            909,335                          -                     463,340 -        2,130,180 
2041       1,337,996        100,000                      -          1,437,996       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (397,996)            918,428                          -                     520,432 -        2,650,611 
2042       1,289,998        100,000                      -          1,389,998       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (349,998)            927,612                          -                     577,615 -        3,228,226 
2043       1,241,999        100,000                      -          1,341,999       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (301,999)            936,888                          -                     634,890 -        3,863,116 

 Total Tax  Effect 8 .25¢

Total 32,312,622   6,400,000  500,000      39,212,622    -                     Total -                     
1 Includes $400,000 annual funding in FY 2023 and FY 2024 and $100,000 thereafter per the Washington County School Funding agreement. Note, capital funding shown does not include annual accumulated lottery funding available to fund school capital and debt service 

that is currently planned to be made available for capital maintenance at other schools. 
2 FY 2023 includes $500,000 for a land purchase and FY 2024 includes a $1,000,000 County Contribution to the Project.
3FY 2023 Estimated Article 40 and 42 1/2 Cent Restricted Sales Tax was $653,742. Assumes $640,000 thereafter. 
4County School Board has agreed to make lease payments to the County of $400,000 per year to pay for for 30 years beginning in FY 2025.
5 FYE 2022 estimated School Capital Outlay Fund Balance per County Audit.



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 7

Debt Affordability Analysis
School Capital Outlay Fund

$22,698,000 Financing – 1-Year Interest Only Period
Assumes a 4 Cent Tax Impact in FY 2024

Note: Per County Staff, assumes FY 2024 value of a penny is $94,000 and is growing by 1.00% thereafter.

 In addition to the capital outlay funding shown above, the 
County will provide an annual operating supplement 
funding of $1,735,000 from General Fund Revenues.

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O
Debt Service Cash Flow Surplus (Deficit)

FY
Proposed Debt 

Service

Annual 
Capital 

Contribution1 
Project Equity 
Contribution2 Total

Restricted 
Schools Tax3

Lease 
Payments 

from School 
Board4

General Fund 
Contribution

Total Revenues 
Available

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Revenue From 
Prior Tax Impact

General Capital 
Reserve 
Utilized

Adjusted Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Estimated 
Incremental Tax 

Equivalent

School Capital 
Outlay Fund 

Reserve 
Balance5

       1,246,258 
2023                         -          400,000        500,000            900,000       653,742                     -                            -              653,742          (246,258)                          -            (246,258)                                 -   -        1,000,000 
2024           491,714        400,000                      -              891,714       640,000                     -                            -              640,000          (251,714)            376,000                          -                     124,286 4.00¢        1,124,286 
2025       2,107,460        100,000                      -          2,207,460       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,167,460)            379,760          (787,700)                                 -   -            336,586 
2026       2,059,421        100,000                      -          2,159,421       640,000       400,000            399,277        1,439,277          (720,144)            383,558          (336,586)                                 0 -                          -   
2027       2,011,382        100,000                      -          2,111,382       640,000       400,000            683,988        1,723,988          (387,393)            387,393                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2028       1,963,343        100,000                      -          2,063,343       640,000       400,000            632,075        1,672,075          (391,267)            391,267                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2029       1,915,304        100,000                      -          2,015,304       640,000       400,000            580,124        1,620,124          (395,180)            395,180                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2030       1,867,265        100,000                      -          1,967,265       640,000       400,000            528,133        1,568,133          (399,132)            399,132                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2031       1,819,226        100,000                      -          1,919,226       640,000       400,000            476,103        1,516,103          (403,123)            403,123                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2032       1,771,187        100,000                      -          1,871,187       640,000       400,000            424,032        1,464,032          (407,154)            407,154                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2033       1,723,148        100,000                      -          1,823,148       640,000       400,000            371,922        1,411,922          (411,226)            411,226                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2034       1,675,109        100,000                      -          1,775,109       640,000       400,000            319,771        1,359,771          (415,338)            415,338                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2035       1,627,070        100,000                      -          1,727,070       640,000       400,000            267,578        1,307,578          (419,491)            419,491                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2036       1,579,031        100,000                      -          1,679,031       640,000       400,000            215,344        1,255,344          (423,686)            423,686                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2037       1,529,992        100,000                      -          1,629,992       640,000       400,000            162,069        1,202,069          (427,923)            427,923                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2038       1,481,993        100,000                      -          1,581,993       640,000       400,000            109,790        1,149,790          (432,202)            432,202                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2039       1,433,994        100,000                      -          1,533,994       640,000       400,000               57,470        1,097,470          (436,524)            436,524                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2040       1,385,995        100,000                      -          1,485,995       640,000       400,000                 5,106        1,045,106          (440,890)            440,890                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2041       1,337,996        100,000                      -          1,437,996       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (397,996)            445,298                          -                       47,302 -               47,302 
2042       1,289,998        100,000                      -          1,389,998       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (349,998)            449,751                          -                       99,754 -            147,056 
2043       1,241,999        100,000                      -          1,341,999       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (301,999)            454,249                          -                     152,250 -            299,306 

 Total Tax  Effect 4 .00¢

Total 32,312,622   6,400,000  500,000      39,212,622    5,232,783       Total -                     
1 Includes $400,000 annual funding in FY 2023 and FY 2024 and $100,000 thereafter per the Washington County School Funding agreement. Note, capital funding shown does not include annual accumulated lottery funding available to fund school capital and debt service 

that is currently planned to be made available for capital maintenance at other schools. 
2 FY 2023 includes $500,000 for a land purchase and FY 2024 includes a $1,000,000 County Contribution to the Project.
3FY 2023 Estimated Article 40 and 42 1/2 Cent Restricted Sales Tax was $653,742. Assumes $640,000 thereafter. 
4County School Board has agreed to make lease payments to the County of $400,000 per year to pay for for 30 years beginning in FY 2025.
5 FYE 2022 estimated School Capital Outlay Fund Balance per County Audit.



March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 8

Debt Affordability Analysis
School Capital Outlay Fund

$22,698,000 Financing – 1-Year Interest Only Period
Assumes a 5 Cent Tax Impact in FY 2024

Note: Per County Staff, assumes FY 2024 value of a penny is $94,000 and is growing by 1.00% thereafter.

 In addition to the capital outlay funding shown above, the 
County will provide an annual operating supplement 
funding of $1,735,000 from General Fund Revenues.

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O
Debt Service Cash Flow Surplus (Deficit)

FY
Proposed Debt 

Service

Annual 
Capital 

Contribution1 
Project Equity 
Contribution2 Total

Restricted 
Schools Tax3

Lease 
Payments 

from School 
Board4

General Fund 
Contribution

Total Revenues 
Available

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Revenue From 
Prior Tax Impact

General Capital 
Reserve 
Utilized

Adjusted Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Estimated 
Incremental Tax 

Equivalent

School Capital 
Outlay Fund 

Reserve 
Balance5

       1,246,258 
2023                         -          400,000        500,000            900,000       653,742                     -                            -              653,742          (246,258)                          -            (246,258)                                 -   -        1,000,000 
2024           491,714        400,000                      -              891,714       640,000                     -                            -              640,000          (251,714)            470,000                          -                     218,286 5.00¢        1,218,286 
2025       2,107,460        100,000                      -          2,207,460       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000       (1,167,460)            474,700          (692,760)                                 -   -            525,526 
2026       2,059,421        100,000                      -          2,159,421       640,000       400,000            114,448        1,154,448       (1,004,973)            479,447          (525,526)                                 -   -                          -   
2027       2,011,382        100,000                      -          2,111,382       640,000       400,000            587,140        1,627,140          (484,241)            484,241                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2028       1,963,343        100,000                      -          2,063,343       640,000       400,000            534,259        1,574,259          (489,084)            489,084                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2029       1,915,304        100,000                      -          2,015,304       640,000       400,000            481,329        1,521,329          (493,975)            493,975                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2030       1,867,265        100,000                      -          1,967,265       640,000       400,000            428,350        1,468,350          (498,914)            498,914                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2031       1,819,226        100,000                      -          1,919,226       640,000       400,000            375,322        1,415,322          (503,904)            503,904                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2032       1,771,187        100,000                      -          1,871,187       640,000       400,000            322,244        1,362,244          (508,943)            508,943                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2033       1,723,148        100,000                      -          1,823,148       640,000       400,000            269,116        1,309,116          (514,032)            514,032                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2034       1,675,109        100,000                      -          1,775,109       640,000       400,000            215,936        1,255,936          (519,172)            519,172                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2035       1,627,070        100,000                      -          1,727,070       640,000       400,000            162,705        1,202,705          (524,364)            524,364                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2036       1,579,031        100,000                      -          1,679,031       640,000       400,000            109,423        1,149,423          (529,608)            529,608                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2037       1,529,992        100,000                      -          1,629,992       640,000       400,000               55,088        1,095,088          (534,904)            534,904                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2038       1,481,993        100,000                      -          1,581,993       640,000       400,000                 1,740        1,041,740          (540,253)            540,253                          -                                   -   -                          -   
2039       1,433,994        100,000                      -          1,533,994       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (493,994)            545,655                          -                       51,661 -               51,661 
2040       1,385,995        100,000                      -          1,485,995       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (445,995)            551,112                          -                     105,117 -            156,778 
2041       1,337,996        100,000                      -          1,437,996       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (397,996)            556,623                          -                     158,627 -            315,405 
2042       1,289,998        100,000                      -          1,389,998       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (349,998)            562,189                          -                     212,192 -            527,597 
2043       1,241,999        100,000                      -          1,341,999       640,000       400,000                          -          1,040,000          (301,999)            567,811                          -                     265,812 -            793,409 

 Total Tax  Effect 5 .00¢

Total 32,312,622   6,400,000  500,000      39,212,622    3,657,099       Total -                     
1 Includes $400,000 annual funding in FY 2023 and FY 2024 and $100,000 thereafter per the Washington County School Funding agreement. Note, capital funding shown does not include annual accumulated lottery funding available to fund school capital and debt service 

that is currently planned to be made available for capital maintenance at other schools. 
2 FY 2023 includes $500,000 for a land purchase and FY 2024 includes a $1,000,000 County Contribution to the Project.
3FY 2023 Estimated Article 40 and 42 1/2 Cent Restricted Sales Tax was $653,742. Assumes $640,000 thereafter. 
4County School Board has agreed to make lease payments to the County of $400,000 per year to pay for for 30 years beginning in FY 2025.
5 FYE 2022 estimated School Capital Outlay Fund Balance per County Audit.



Appendix

Summary of Bank Proposals

March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 9



March 2, 2023

Summary of Bids Received

10Washington County, NC

A B C D
Lender Prepayment Provisions Option 1 Option 2

2 Current market interest rates as of 2/28/2023. Preliminary and subject to change. 

1 COPF shall lock the rate when the Borrower provides a final debt service schedule and firm closing date. On such date (the “Lock Date”), the final interest rate on the Loan shall be determined by observing the then-
yielding 10-year U.S. Treasury note (ticker USGG10YR on Bloomberg, the “Benchmark Rate”) and comparing it to its yield of 3.95% (the “Base Date Rate”) on February 28,2023 (the “Base Date”). On the Lock Date, if the 
Benchmark Rate remains between 3.80% and 4.10% (i.e. within the “Collar”), there shall be no changes to the Loan rates quoted above. However, if the Benchmark Rate is above 4.10% or below 3.80% on the Lock Date, 
the Loan rate shall be adjusted by one basis point up or down for every basis point the Benchmark Rate is outside the Collar.

1 Capital One Public Funding, LLC
No call until 12/01/2032, callable thereafter at par in whole or in part, 

prepayments applied in inverse order of maturity. 4.67%1 4.68%1

Prepayment A: 3.95%

Prepayment B: 4.07%

Prepayment C: 4.02%

2 Truist Bank

Prepayment A: Prepayable in whole or in part subject to a "Make Whole Call"
 

Prepayment B: Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 9 years without 
penalty; subject to a "Make Whole Call" prior to 9 years

Prepayment C: Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 10 years 
without penalty; subject to a "Make Whole Call" prior to 10 years

Prepayment A: 3.95%

Prepayment B: 4.07%

Prepayment C: 4.02%

3 Public Sale (TIC) Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 10 years. 3.91%2 3.91%2



March 2, 2023 Washington County, NC 11

Summary of Proposals
Truist Bank Proposal

A
Lender

Option 1 & 2 Option 1 & 2

1 Tax-Exempt Interest Rate
A: 3.95%
B: 4.07%
C: 4.02%

3.91% (TIC)

2 Prepayment Language

3 Acceptance / Rate Expiration

4 Escrow / Project Fund

5 Bank Fees

6 Credit Approval

7 Lender's Counsel 

8 Other Considerations

Additional fees associated with Bond Underwriting, Official Statement, Bond 
Documents, Credit Ratings, etc. 

n/a - Credit Ratings Required

TBD

- The Public Sale approach will require a Trustee and compliance with 
continuing disclosure requirements. 

- Typically a Title Insurance Policy will be obtained for a Public Sale.
- A Public Sale will require annual principal payments and semi-annual interest 

payments. 

Public Sale

C

Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 10 years. 

Mid-May / Late May

- A Project Fund will be established by the Trustee and will be invested as 
directed by the County.

- The current NCCMT rate is 4.50%; subject to change based on market 
condition. 

Prepayment A: Prepayable in whole or in part subject to a "Make Whole Call" 
Prepayment B: Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 9 years 

without penalty; subject to a "Make Whole Call" prior to 9 years
Prepayment C: Prepayable in whole or in part at any time after 10 years 

without penalty; subject to a "Make Whole Call" prior to 10 years

March 28th / May 19th

B
Truist  Bank

-The Bank will require a security interest on the PreK-12 School Facility.

-The Bank will require a flood certification and Title Search. The Bank will NOT 
require a Title Opinion or Title Insurance Policy.

Fully Approved

Pope Flynn, LLP (Matt Davis)

-Truist will require that all proceeds be deposited in a Project Fund with Truist. 
The borrower will be required to submit a requisition request for each draw 

from the project fund.
- The current earnings rate on the Truist Project Fund is 3.50%; subject to 

change based on market condition.

Not-to-exceed $10,000



Date Task
March 28th Truist Proposal Acceptance Deadline

April 3rd at 6:00pm County Board of Commissioners Meeting

 County Board selects a winning bank lender, if applicable

April 4th LGC Application Deadline

April 24th Agenda Deadline for May 1st Board Meeting

May 1st at 6:00pm County Board of Commissioners Meeting

 County Board considers adopting a Final Resolution
May 2nd LGC considers approving the financing

By May 19th Close on Direct Bank Loan

March 2, 2023

Preliminary Financing Schedule

Washington County, NC 12

Direct Bank Loan Approach

Recommendation

 Based upon our review of the proposals, related analyses and discussions with County Staff and Bond Counsel, Davenport recommends that the 
County select the Truist 10-year par call prepayment option with a 4.02% interest rate. Additional details regarding the loan, including a 
recommended amortization option, will be determined following the establishment of a final GMP. 

Next Steps



Municipal Advisor Disclosure

The enclosed information relates to an existing or potential municipal advisor engagement.
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in municipal advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting a particular issuance of
municipal securities should be subject to municipal advisor registration. Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a registered municipal advisor Davenport may
provide advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit corporation, that has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to
issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when an issuer engages Davenport to provide financial advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities,
Davenport is obligated to evidence such a financial advisory relationship with a written agreement.
When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal entity without regard to its own financial or other interests. Davenport is not a fiduciary
when it acts as a registered investment advisor, when advising an obligated person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such persons.
This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport. This material was not produced by a research analyst, although it may refer to a Davenport research analyst or research report.
Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if any) are the author’s and may differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm. Davenport may perform or seek to perform financial
advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein.
This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Any such offer would be made only after a
prospective participant had completed its own independent investigation of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its own investment decision, including, where
applicable, a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument. That information would contain material information not contained herein and to which prospective participants are
referred. This material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be stale thereafter. We have no obligation to tell you when information herein may change. We make no representation or warranty
with respect to the completeness of this material. Davenport has no obligation to continue to publish information on the securities/instruments mentioned herein. Recipients are required to comply with any legal or
contractual restrictions on their purchase, holding, sale, exercise of rights or performance of obligations under any securities/instruments transaction.
The securities/instruments discussed in this material may not be suitable for all investors or issuers. Recipients should seek independent financial advice prior to making any investment decision based on this material.
This material does not provide individually tailored investment advice or offer tax, regulatory, accounting or legal advice. Prior to entering into any proposed transaction, recipients should determine, in consultation with
their own investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as well as the legal, tax, regulatory and accounting characteristics and consequences, of the transaction. You should
consider this material as only a single factor in making an investment decision.
The value of and income from investments and the cost of borrowing may vary because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, default rates, prepayment rates, securities/instruments prices, market indexes,
operational or financial conditions or companies or other factors. There may be time limitations on the exercise of options or other rights in securities/instruments transactions. Past performance is not necessarily a guide
to future performance and estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. Actual events may differ from those assumed and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact
on any projections or estimates. Other events not taken into account may occur and may significantly affect the projections or estimates. Certain assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes or to simplify the
presentation and/or calculation of any projections or estimates, and Davenport does not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that estimated
returns or projections will be realized or that actual returns or performance results will not materially differ from those estimated herein. This material may not be sold or redistributed without the prior written consent of
Davenport.

Version 1.01.23 CW | MB | TC

March 27, 2023 Washington County, NC 13



 COST

8/12/2022 

 Board Approved 

Construction Budget 

 Current GMP 

PHASE I 

 GMP BUDGET 

PHASE II 

Surveys / Borings 59,681$                      

Special Inspections 275,000$                    30,000$                      

Specialty Consultants

Land

190,000$ -$                                334,681$                    30,000$                      

Construction Cost

New Construction 68,111,702$                   77,872,253$               

Basic building including and basic site                                      

Additional Elementary school classrooms                                

New Gym and Aux Gym in base bid now

Solar Generation will be an alternate  Excluded

Ballfields and Fieldhouse will be an alternate

Scope reductions / Value Engineering (7,785,760)$               

Added space in the kitchen

Geothermal Excluded

Electrochromic Glazing Excluded

Renovations- Phase 2

Early College Renovations 1,000,000$                 

Ballfields, Grading, Sitework, Bleachers, Fencing, Concessions/Fieldhouse 8,000,000$                 

Selective demolition at Creswell and WCHS 1,200,000$                 

Furniture and  Equipment - Phase 2

Technology                                                                                  2,087,500$                 

Furniture                                                                         4,620,000$                 

Pines Elementary School  - Demo/ Fencing/ General Conditions 3 Months 896,479$                        1,247,764$                 

Change Order #2 26,074$                      

Change Order #3 321,508$                    

Construction/Renovation/Demo Cost Total Cost Total

Inflation (12% per year)lncIuded  in cost per sf Included Above

Inflated Construction Cost Total

Owner Construction Contingency From Soft Cost

Total Construction Cost 58,151,487$        69,008,181$                   72,016,519$               16,967,500$               3,008,338$        4.18%

Soft Cost @8% 4,652,119$ 5,761,322$                 1,357,400$                 

Owner's Contingency                     3% (2.54%) 1,744,545$ 1,744,545$                     1,744,545$                 509,025$                    

TOTAL  ESTIMATED PROJECT COST 64,738,150$ 70,752,726$                   79,522,386$               18,833,925$               

**Budget does not include instructional materials

Plus: Estimated Cost of Issuance 240,000$ 240,000$                    

Less: Needs Based Grant (50,000,000)$ (50,000,000)$             

Less: ESSER Funding (3,500,000)$ (3,500,000)$               

Less: Assumed Cash Contribution By County (1,000,000)$ (1,000,000)$               

Less: DOT Grant and Energy Conservation  Grant (150,000)$ (150,000)$                  

Total Estimated Amount Financed by County Before Rebate 10,328,150$ 70,752,726$                   25,112,386$               18,833,925$               

Inflation Reduction Act Tax Rebate -$ 

Sales Tax Reimbursement* (1,595,009)$               

Total Estimated Amount Financed by County 10,328,150$ 70,752,726$ 23,517,377$ 18,833,925$               

20,000,000.00$          3,517,376.65$   

* Sales Tax Reimbursement is calculated at 35% of cost of work with 6.75% sales tax

Washington County School - Washington PK-12 School

Plymouth, NC

Thursday, March 30, 2023

Project Budget Comparisons



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:  April 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 



















































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   7 
 
       DATE:     April 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from March 2023 (see attached) 
 Statistics Reports from March 2023 (see attached) 

 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
April 3, 2023 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
The GIS office has been completing its traditional set of roles and responsibilities in addition to 
several special projects including an MSW route audit, transition preparations, and AMI 
propagation studies, and the creation of a lead service line monitoring/inventory system.  
 
Thank you for the time you took to read this update and I look forward to continued service to 
the people of Washington County.  
 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:  The EMS Division has (2) Full Time Paramedic positions and (1) Basic 
EMT position available.  The Transport Division has two Full Time EMT positions available. 
We are also accepting applications for part time positions.   

EMPLOYEE SAFETY:  PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak 
in call volume for approximately 45 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the 
daily disinfecting practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of 
EMS units.  We are seeing a downward trend in COVID positive patients.    

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:   UNC PECC+ Program :  PECC Coordinator Jessica Howery 
attended and completed the Field Training and Evaluation Program (FTEP) at the NC EMS 
Administrators Conference in Wilmington.   

Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:   EMS had a patient experience sudden cardiac arrest with a 
return of spontaneous circulation and respirations after CPR.  The patient was transported to 
ECU Health Greenville where she was treated and discharged a few days later at her normal 
neurological state.   
 
Deputy Director Ward attended EMS Officer II Safety training at the NC EMS Administrators 
Conference in Wilmington.  Also, she and EMT Jessica Barnes attended EMS Officer II 
Operations training at the COA Dare Campus this past month.   
 
APPARATUS:  Currently we have 2 EMS ambulances out of service for damage repairs.  This 
leaves no spare for an unexpected breakdown which we had when a 3rd unit experienced damage 
following routine maintenance.  We have one of the original 2 ambulances back after 
approximately a week and a half with three out.  Very stressful indeed.  We are anticipating 
repairs to be completed over the next couple of weeks. New Transit Van for Transport Division 
has left the factory and should be shipped to NC by flatbed this week.  
 



 
 

 

HOSPITAL:  WRMC continues to be on very frequent CT/X-Ray diversion, with the highest 
percentage of time after 5pm and on weekends and holidays.  This is significantly impacting our 
units turn-around time, fuel consumption and maintenance costs.  Most concerning is the 
increase in hours that our units are outside of the county and not available or delayed from 
answering calls for service by our citizens.   
 
Thank you for your continued support of EMS. 

 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is good.  We will start having our tournament games on  this Sat.   Sign up for T-ball, 
baseball, softball, flag football, pickle ball, and blitzball  start this Sat. also.   
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
I have been busy this month running back and forth to work and home due to the reconstruction 
of the kitchen and bathrooms. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Staffing: 

• We have an opening for a twelve-hour PT Library Technician; it has been posted on 
Indeed.  

Programming: 

Grassroots Schedule: 

• Tuesday, April 4th: Jacki Shelton Green, NC Poet Laureate will do a reading at WCHS 
(10:00 AM) and at Washington County Library (5:00 PM) 

• June 2nd and 3rd: John Brown Entertainment Group (Jazz Ensemble) will perform at “First 
Fridays” and The Plymouth Black Bear Festival (~ 5:00 PM) 

• June 16th: Willa Brigham, Storyteller will perform at Washington County Library (1:00 
PM) 

• June 22nd: Tarish Pipkins, Puppeteer will perform at Washington County Library (Time 
TBA) 

• We are waiting for word from Diali Cissokho, AA Percussionist on if he would like to 
perform. 

Summer Reading: 

• June 21st: ecoExplore with Poquoson Wildlife Refuge 
• June 28th: Cooperative Extension 



 
 

 

• July 5th: Police Department? (I have not heard back) 
• July 12th: Rhana Paris from NC Aquariums will be hosting a program about being kind to 

ocean animals at 1:00 PM 
• July 19th OR 26th: Fire Department 

 
August 2nd: Gary Shelton, Magician will host a magic show for our End of Summer 
Reading Celebration at 2:00 PM. 
 
Grace Wise and Alex Barr: Craft Program (July 5th maybe?) 

*Hardcopy Schedules and Virtual Schedules will be posted once lineup finalized 

Library Business: 

• We have completed our weeding of the collection for TLC Migration. 
• Weeded items are being sold as part of our ongoing Book Sale; Hardcovers: $1.00, 

Softcovers: $0.25, and Small Paperbacks (ex. Harlequin Romances): FREE 
• We are in the process of setting up a Makerspace for patrons to use; we have a 3D 

Printer, Sewing Machine, Mug/T-Shirt Press, and (2) Cricuts – staff is training 
themselves on how to operate these items. 

Community Happenings: 

We have found homes for ALL of our “Little Libraries.” They will be located at the following 
spots: 

• Washington County Health Department (Senior Center) 
• Washington County African American Museum and Cultural Center 
• Barnyard Betsy’s  
• Downtown Mini Park 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. The staff is working on the Business Personal Property and Personal Property 
listings, each one is reviewed, additions and deletions are made and values are 
added.  

2. The tax clerks – Christal and Hollie - are handling the day to day processing of 
payments, handling phone calls and emails as they can but also work is being 
delegated to them as it can be.   

3. Hollie is assisting with the processing of the Personal Property listings.     
4. Felesha and Darlene Harrison continue to review and enter the data from the 

BPP forms. 
5. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
6. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions in regards to motor vehicles.  



 
 

 

7. Continue to verify PINs for various reasons – usually for the filing of deeds – if 
Richard is out of the office.  Corresponding with him, as needed, if there is a 
question or issue with a property or properties that includes GIS.  

8. We continue to get calls for Republic Services, we direct the taxpayer to the 
county’s website and Landfill.   

9. Christal is assisting Darlene with the Employer Letters. 
10. Denise continues to work part-time to assist our office with NCVTS reports 

and estate files. 
11. I submitted the Statistical Report for February.   
12. The monthly Safety Report was submitted.  
13. The Notice of Lien Advertisement / DSO letters were mailed this month, we 

have had a flood of calls and visits due to their mailing.  
14. Our county hosted the Albemarle Ad Valorem Tax Association meeting this 

month.  
15. I made a presentation at the Citizen’s Academy meeting this month.  
16. I met with Richard over the move for GIS for next fiscal year.  
17. I worked on the budget. 

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

Activity Report 

 

 Permits Issued   24 
 Inspections Completed 29 
 Flood Plain Reviews    5 
 Plan/Application Reviews   5 
 
 Consult – Town of Plymouth re:  public vs private nuisance at Garrett’s Island 
                  Pre-plan with contractor for demolition and rebuilding of home 
       DOI regarding hood system requirements in restaurants/coffee shops 
       Mary and Lance regarding final cleanout of 205 E Main St – has been   
       completed 
       Julia Townsend regarding primitive campground on Spruill Farm 
 8th -     Floodplain Administrator Workshop (4 hours) 
 13th  - Budget Conference with Admin 
 16th  - Planning Board Meeting in Creswell 
 21st – Connie and Allen CRS – Preparing for the Inspection 
 7th –    Connie – CERT Effective mutual aid program 
 15th     Connie – SERT quarterly exercise with EM 
  
            Connie out of office 6, 24,27,28,31 
 Initiated Fire Marshal Inspection rotation for restaurants (3 year inspection required by 
the NC Fire Prevention Code).  COVID restrictions prevented this service during the past 3 
years. 



 
 

 

Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

Here is a list of things accomplished from the date of hire 3/16/23 to 3/27/23:  
1. Organized files  
2. Attempted to register with all job portals and websites  
3. Reached out to local techs in the area  
4. Inspected John Griffin, Eric Stallings, and Nevis Leary beaver dams  
5. Set up printer in office   
6. Registered for trainings  
7. Read about and dismantled drone and put back in case  
8. Delivered poster to Chowan County for contest  
9. Took a JAA Land Smoothing Training in Tyrell County  
10. Cleaned barn that stores four-wheeler and boat  
11. Inspected David Davenports suspected location for well with Nathan  
12. Still attempting to get registered with state and federal websites  
13. Maintenance on trailers  
14. Contacted the Mannings about post work images for land smoothing  
15. Organized office  

 
 
Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
  



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
Public Utilities 
Lee Sasser 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
Detention:   

 
No other reports submitted. 
 



 
 

 

Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Receive quote for O365 and forward to Curtis.  
2. Create email for MaintenanceStaff and change Maintenance for Facilities Director use. Move 

emails from Maintenance to MaintenanceStaff. 
3. Multiple conversations with Motorola. Tech support called to work on Law Enforcement 

Radio in server room and discovered consoles in server room have not been upgraded.  
Martin stated they were not included in the quote and really not sure why. 

4. Complete Cost Allocation Plan and submit to Finance. 
5. Troubleshoot issue with SCADA server not connecting to network at Water Plant. 
6. Troubleshoot issue with Julie not being able to receive emails from Cathy Ange at  

WCCHS. Exchange logs reflect emails received. 
7. Discussion with Lance concerning new laptops/tablets ordered for EM. Need to have  

antivirus license before setting up. Get quote and send to Lance to verify funds available to 
purchase.  

8. Complete FY23-24 Budget Request and submit to Curtis and Missy. Organize an IT budget  
book for FY23-24. Attend IT budget meeting with Curtis and Missy on 03/22/23. 

9. Attend online meeting with NCLGISA concerning new subscription fee being charged by 
NCDIT. Submit notes to Curtis and Missy. 

10. Troubleshoot issue with Danny at Landfill logging in computer. 
11. Request from AOC to run two ethernet drops to cash registers in Clerk of Court for credit  

card machines. Daniel and I checked available openings in walls to run cable. Facilities  
staff ran cable. 

12. Work with Southern Software: apply updates to CAD and MDS. 
13. Meet with SSG and Facilities to run ethernet cable from EMS to Facilities Shop. 
14. Assist Sheriff with organizing FY23-24 Budget excel sheet to submit to County Manager. 
15. Troubleshoot issues with Clinta connecting to Edmunds. Computer is 10 years old, so I  

refurbished a newer computer that was used in Planning office to use for Edmunds. 
16. Setup computer for Facilities Director. Apply all security updates, create profiles & 

configurations, install antivirus, setup Office/email/sync folder with server, setup Edmunds 
with permissions. 

17. Setup printers for Maintenance and MaintenanceStaff computers. 
18. Review 2021 copier request and make necessary changes. Review copier RFP that was  

used in 2021 and revise. Send updated copier RFP to Curtis to review. RFP has been added  
to washconc website. Estimated Timeline: 



 
 

 

 

19. Update 911 5-Year Technology Plan. Add equipment updated, including dates, costs, and  
 scheduled replacement dates. Review with Anna. 
20. Work with Tina on GASB96. 
21. Setup Chris Respess with Soil & Water in Edmunds. 
22. Request from Jennifer to disconnect BrightSpeed EMS Circuit. Need verification from 

Jennifer first that the disconnection with not disrupt any other EMS services. 
23. Attend VC3 Kickoff meeting for installation of VoIP phones. There will be 2 Phases. Phase 

1: Network Updates (estimated to be completed by the week of May 15) and Phase 2:  
Installation of Phones (will be reviewed after Phase 1 is completed). Review all  
documentation and make necessary changes. In coming weeks will be working on  
additional items that need to be completed by IT and ethernet cable runs.  

24. Attend Departmental meeting. 
25. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
26. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
27. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
28. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
29. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 



 
 

 

Senior Center 

Vanessa Joyner 
 

1. Overall -  February we had a fun filled month of activities for the seniors  
2. DYI with Staff – February 1-2, 2023 – Maria had the seniors to make a valentine wreath 

and they made tissue paper flowers to put on the wreath.  They had fun making the 
wreaths and were proud of their work.    

3. Beyond the Basics Computer Class – February 1, 2023 – Vanessa is finishing the 
Beyond the Basics Computer class with the seniors.  The classes are on Monday and 
Wednesday.   The class has taught the seniors how to use their tablets or smartphones 
safety, to use their calendars, to share documents, using YouTube, streaming music and 
using Canva.  They really enjoyed the class and learned a lot.    

4. Inspirational Studies – February 1, 2023 – Ms. Teresa McNair has volunteered to share 
inspirational information with the seniors.   This is the first time we had an outsider to 
come and share with the seniors in a while.  She comes weekly we the seniors.  They 
have enjoyed her sharing.  

5. Pickleball – February 1, 2023 – We have seven seniors that play pickleball.  Recreation 
has graciously allowed the seniors to use the Washington Street Gym to play pickleball. 
We play on Mondays and Wednesdays from 1:00-2:30.  They really enjoy playing and 
are faithful in coming.  We have two teams playing in the Senior Games this spring.   

6. Computer Basic for Older Adults Class – February 2, 2023 - This is the second time 
offering the Basic Computer Class.  They are finishing this class.  They meet on Tuesday 
and Thursday.  The seniors have learned the basic of using a tablet or their smartphone, 
how to use a desktop, how to sign up for an Email account, how to email, send 
attachments, and searching the web safely.  They really enjoyed the class 

7. Police Department – February 7, 2023 – the Police Department came to talk to the 
seniors about medication safety.  They shared the proper way to dispose of medications.  
It was very informative.    

8. Senior Game Practice – February 10, 2023  –  We are practicing the events as shot put, 
discus throwing, football throw and softball toss.  We want the seniors to be used to using 
these items when they attend the senior games.  We hope they will bring back the gold.    

9. History Walk – February 14m 2023 – Maria has been sharing different history facts with 
the seniors.  This activity was testing their memory of what they had retained.  She had 
numbers on the floor and we did similar to musical chairs, when the music stopped she 
pulled a number and that person had to answer the question.  If they answered correctly, 
they received a prize and set down.  It was a lot of fun and they were able to remember 
the facts.     

10. Black History Program – February 15, 2023 – We invited several community seniors to 
participate in the program.   They shared different aspics of Black History to the seniors. 
They gave inspiring speeches.  Each attendant was given a small replica of the African 
American Flag. 

11. Bingo with Annette – February 16, 2023 – The seniors were glad to have Annette come 
back to play bingo with them.   We have missed having her come.  They love to play 
bingo.   

12. Memory Games – February 21, 2023 - Ms. Lois Davis does a wonderful job with the 
seniors.   She plays different games with the seniors to test their memory.  Each month is 
different.  She gives out prizes as well.   They really love that. 



 
 

 

13. Washington County African Museum – February 28, 2023 –The seniors had their first 
trip of the year to the big town of Roper to the African American Museum.  Ms. Rosa 
Brown explained the process of opening this museum and what it meant to her.   They 
were able to look around and travel down memory lane.   They saw items they hadn’t 
seen in years.  They also learned new things about Roper’s and Washington County’s 
history. It was a good trip.  

 
14. Exercise Classes offered at the Center:  

Yoga – Monday 6:00 p.m. cost $5.00 monthly 
Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Beginner’s Line Dance – Tues 5:30 with Linda Brannon cost $5.00 a month 
Line Dancing – Thursday 5:30 with Linda Brannon cost $5.00 a month 
 
Classes after 5:00 are opened to citizens of all ages.   

 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Waiting on jet fuel pump motor, may be here Wednesday 29 and install 
the new pump motor.  Will be able to sell jet fuel with pump motor working. 

2. Replaced 31 runway light. 
3. Woods 20 foot batwing mower delivered March 24.  Will get old motor ready for surplus.  
4. Installers for QT POD came today (March 28, 2023) and have started installing QT unit.  
5. Runway lighting surveyors have completed their survey for Runway led lights.   
6. Future Projects:   

 Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose.                                                 
 Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                   
 Clean logging road overgrowth.                                                                                                                                            
 Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.      
 Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway lights, and fixtures that has sunken in 

or washed away to meet FAA safety standards.                                                            
 Runway: Need to put weed killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.     

Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport.                               
Need to cut around runway and taxiway lights. Will have to remove trees north 
end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA safety standards. Remove 
rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear on 
airport equipment.                                                             
Repair Beacon                                                                                                        
Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator)          
Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                             
Replace underground phone line to FMU at refueling station.        
 
And other items that are not on this list.                                                    

 
 
 



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• Williamston Glass: No update on the Strader building 2ND story windows. 
• Following up on the mowing contract 
• The PO# that had been issued for window replacement has been cancelled, this will be 

done by the maintenance dept. 
• The three HVAC units have been repaired by Roberson Heating &Air. 
• Following up on the Sheriff’s Office renovations. 
• Following up with Arborist John Sugg on the courthouse tree. 

Maintenance: 

• We have completed 110 work orders. 
• Compiling an inventory of supplies/parts. 
• Compiling a tool inventory register. 
• Cleaning and organizing the maintenance shop. 

Upcoming Projects: 

• Demolish old barn and remove debris at the Stotesberry farm. 
• Remodel the old EM bldg. to house probation/parole. 
• Implement the life safety standards. 
• Compile/implement a preventive maintenance schedule. 

 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month when necessary) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 

Surplus Update 
   

Currently At Auction or Advertising 
Asset List Price End Date 
Lot of Wooden Desks $30.00  21 Apr 2023 12:35 PM ET 

Proxima Projector PROAV9500 (condition unkown) $75.00  21 Apr 2023 12:50 PM ET 



 
 

 

Lot of 3 File Cabinets $21.00  21 Apr 2023 01:26 PM ET 

PVC Plastic Desk (missing pieces) $20.00  21 Apr 2023 01:58 PM ET 
Lot of 11 Hexagonal Desks $88.00  21 Apr 2023 02:40 PM ET 
Lot of 3 File Cabinets $12.00  21 Apr 2023 08:34 AM ET 
Lot of 4 file cabinets $28.00  21 Apr 2023 08:54 AM ET 
Lot of Air Filters $1.00  21 Apr 2023 09:01 AM ET 

Storage Building Panel and Doors (Missing Pieces) $400.00  21 Apr 2023 01:01 PM ET 
InFocus Projector $45.00  28 Apr 2023 12:53 PM ET 

2 Vintage Projectors and 7 boxes of slide trays $20.00  28 Apr 2023 01:45 PM ET 

2004 Polaris 330 Magnum 4x4 Four Wheeler $1,200.00  24 Apr 2023 09:35 AM ET 

   
Sold ( or pending sale) 

Asset Price Status 
758 Spruill Bridge Rd-Creswell $15,600  Pending 
ID Badge Machine-Condition Unknown $20.00  Sold and PU 
Zebra ID Printer-Condition Unknown $30.00  Sold and PU 

   
Preparing to be Listed 

Asset Status   
IT Items Documenting  

 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

56 62 44 38 46 36 40 35 0 0 0 0 357 357
Male 40 42 29 22 29 19 21 15 217
Female 3 4 4 5 6 6 4 9 41
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 12 15 11 11 11 11 14 10 95
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

MARTIN

DETENTION 
FY22-23

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

0

0

95

0

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SMCP
NORTHAMPTON                        Male

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

0

0

258

0

2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 138 134 130 151 144 166 151 146 1160
WC Transported 98 101 91 106 98 104 113 95 806
WC Refusals 40 33 39 45 46 62 38 51 354

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 6 2 3 1 1 0 0 1 14
SNF to Doctors 85 65 98 136 88 95 87 108 762
Hospital Discharges 10 21 12 19 10 6 14 7 99
EMS Back Up 1 6 6 3 1 7 10 3 37

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 60 61 69 71 54 50 62 49 476
TC Transported 49 41 48 44 36 38 43 25 324
TC Refusals 11 20 21 27 18 12 19 24 152

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY22-23

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Pickups FY23

1160

806

354



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals
Building $1,355.00 2,150.00$          3,014.54$   2,374.60$   1,130.00$   2,912.12$   2,638.24$   2,233.00$   2,145.00$   $19,952.50
Zoning 75.00$      25.00$         100.00$       75.00$         175.00$       125.00$       100.00$       50.00$         $725.00

Reinspect 225.00$    -$             150.00$       725.00$       175.00$       -$             75.00$         375.00$       175.00$       $1,900.00
SWUF $150.00 125.00$       250.00$       -$             -$             100.00$       -$             -$             $625.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 10.00$         -$             10.00$         -$             -$             -$             $20.00

Total $1,805.00 $2,300.00 $3,524.54 $3,174.60 $1,490.00 $3,137.12 $2,813.24 $2,658.00 $2,320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,222.50

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY22-23

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY22-23) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

86%

3%
8% 3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building

Zoning

Reinspect

SWUF

HO Recovery
Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 1504
Unduplicated Attendees 54 68 50 172
New Particpants 2 2 1 5
Center-Sponsored Events 265 261 105 631
Special Events 26 40 14 80
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5 4 14
Exercise Room 24 51 15 90
Dance Fitness 6 6
Yoga 16 12 12 40
Chair Exercise 65 70 46 181
Beginner's Line Dance 14 21 18 53
Line Dance with Linda 27 31 37 95
Crafts With Sandra Lee 14 12 12 38
Sewing with Geraldine 16 22 16 54
Drop-in Activities 0
Computer Classes 29 29
Bridge 16 16

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1013 1139 934 911 874 658 749 0 0 0 0 0 6278
Congregate Meals Served 220 262 218 185 173 115 142 1315
Home-Delivered Meals Served 793 877 716 726 701 543 607 4963
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 438.50$  532.19$  309.05$   54.65$    216.90$  ###### 289.00$  -$        -$  -$  -$  -$  2,650.29$  
Congregate Meals 148.50$  132.19$  39.05$      54.65$    91.90$    70.00$    536.29$     
Home-Delivered Meals 155.00$  215.00$  270.00$   225..00 125.00$  ###### 129.00$  1,704.00$  
Activity Fees 125.00$  85.00$    90.00$    300.00$     
Donations 10.00$    100.00$  110.00$     

SENIOR CENTER
FY22-23

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000
Meals Served (FY22-23)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

48%

6%

1%

7%0%

3%

14%

4%

7%

3%
4%

0%

2%

1%

Senior Center Activities (FY22-23) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Line Dance with Linda

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Sewing with Geraldine

Drop-in Activities

Computer Classes

Bridge



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 898,210.32$      2,292,012.84$   404,187.42$      223,827.03$   361,823.03$   1,110,348.78$   1,091,162.57$   6,381,571.99$                     
Current Yr Discount (16,983.97)$       (32,457.61)$       (600.68)$             -$                -$                -$                    -$                    (50,042.26)$                         
Current Year Penalty 107.78$              2,564.03$           516.33$              218.50$          127.82$          3,821.16$           1,645.99$           9,001.61$                             
Current Year Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    554.41$          -$                -$                    3,831.19$           4,385.60$                             Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 10,162.47$        27,388.25$        4,764.97$           2,666.75$       3,961.14$       13,162.78$        12,982.50$        75,088.86$                          
Watershed Discount (203.16)$             (387.62)$             (7.00)$                 -$                -$                -$                    -$                    (597.78)$                               
Watershed Penalty 1.24$                  30.56$                6.09$                  1.11$              1.17$              40.09$                18.08$                98.34$                                  
Watershed Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    6.41$              -$                -$                    40.19$                46.60$                                  Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Prior Year Tax 44,247.58$        89,391.99$        42,863.52$        33,593.45$     42,599.81$     25,468.87$        46,974.51$        325,139.73$                        
Prior Year Penalty 154.44$              72.04$                12.85$                58.08$            33.73$            70.85$                1,149.64$           1,551.63$                             
Prior Year Interest 4,028.32$           8,724.90$           5,215.11$           3,961.82$       13,239.58$     3,192.96$           6,444.00$           44,806.69$                          
Prior Year Watershed 378.70$              590.37$              306.97$              265.82$          245.71$          111.99$              460.53$              2,360.09$                             
Prior Year WS Penalty 1.69$                  0.91$                  0.33$                  0.88$              0.44$              0.53$                  1.72$                  6.50$                                    
Prior Year WS Interest 333.37$              468.29$              271.88$              289.19$          364.36$          177.76$              390.63$              2,295.48$                             
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (538.54)$             (1,425.85)$      -$                -$                    (16,503.95)$       (18,468.34)$                         
Prepayments 520.18$              3,572.47$           3,255.73$           3,081.94$       2,834.72$       2,578.00$           4,024.04$           19,867.08$                          

TOTAL 940,958.96$      2,391,971.42$   460,254.98$      267,099.54$   425,231.51$   1,158,973.77$   1,152,621.64$   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  6,797,111.83$                     

Initiated 1 5 0 9 10 0 0 25
Amount 1,338.48$           3,763.76$           -$                    4,187.72$       8,832.11$       -$                    -$                    16,783.59$                          
Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 2 7                      0 0 9
Amount -$                    -$                    -$                    787.64$          4,174.69$       -$                    -$                    4,962.33$                             

*
76,269.23 93,475.19$        77,088.65$     65,226.07 $76,396.96 72,306.44 75,682.14 536,444.68$                        

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,173,600.00$   1,173,600.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,561.83$        54,369.74$     69,541.33$     164,851.90$      105,240.78$      968,094.22$                        
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (300.00)$             (340.00)$         -$                -$                    (903.57)$             (1,543.57)$                           

TOTAL 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,261.83$        54,029.74$     69,541.33$     164,851.90$      104,337.21$      -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  966,550.65$                        

Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 8,733.79$           62,366.75$        20,645.48$        11,311.92$     15,122.66$     47,021.58$        15,204.97$        180,407.15$                        

Creswell Levy 3,564.64$           22,463.38$        14,258.93$        1,581.06$       3,605.24$       34,264.36$        21,193.34$        100,930.95$                        
1,124,487.59$   2,899,575.18$   661,896.41$      411,110.91$   578,726.81$   1,481,508.57$   1,365,663.60$   75,682.14$     -$                -$                -$                -$  8,598,651.22$                     

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

TAX
FY22-23

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 1187 1165 1129 1039 1062 982 935 0 0 0 0 7499
Law Enforcement 927 894 874 796 801 725 685 5702

Animal Control 88 126 79 71 63 86 81 594
EMS 172 145 176 172 198 171 169 1203

Reported Incidents 62 54 50 52 57 47 45 34 21 422
Total Arrests 14 16 11 10 11 5 13 0 3 0 0 0 83

Misdemeanor Arrests 5 6 9 8 5 4 4 0 3 44
Felony Arrests 9 10 2 2 6 1 9 0 0 39

Total Papers Served 64 79 66 75 48 36 70 46 81 0 0 0 565
Criminal Papers Served 10 2 0 3 3 1 3 4 21 47

Civil Papers Served 54 77 66 72 45 35 67 42 60 518
Total Papers Outstanding 15 27 32 16 20 16 53 40 34 0 0 0 253
Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 0 0 2 2 2 1 0 3 17

Civil Papers Outstanding 8 27 32 14 18 14 52 40 31 236
Gun Permits Issued 23 18 16 18 39 29 22 11 20 196
Conceals Pending 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 8

Concealed Permits Issued 21 27 17 21 23 18 26 29 16 198

SHERRIFF
FY22-23

76%

8%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY22-23)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY22-23)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

422

44 39 47

518

17

236

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

YTD TOTALS

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY22-23)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons) 7656 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956

88,905

Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in 
million gallons) 7707 7855

8266 6766 7766 7706 6657 6814 59,537

Base Charges 65,364$      65,388$    65,292$    65,292$    65,268$  65,316$  65,099$  65,147$    522,166$        
Consumption Charges 48,516$      50,505$    55,159$    38,779$    48,932$  49,049$  37,856$  39,481$    368,277$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,785$        2,205$      1,645$      1,715$      1,470$     1,365$     1,785$     1,575$      13,545$          

 Number of Abatements 
13 21

23 21 14 15 27 8 142                 

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 1,547.00$  2,697$      

3,146$      3,452$      1,794$     1,274$     3,874$     566$          18,349.50$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons) 13.9 15.6 14.5 14.5 12 12 12 11 105.359

Number of Customers 2657 2658 2654 2654 2653 2655 2652 2654 21,237
New taps 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 5
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$  38,757.20$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY22-23

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 58.36 57.92 62.47 59.7 80.46 77.68 106.63 69.86 573.08
Inert Debris 10.77 11 35.74 11.96 12.35 4.35 113.24 0 199.41
Scrap Metal 5.27 5.97 0.77 0.96 0.13 0.13 0.80 0.22 14.25
C&D 155.3 150.13 38.92 101.80 31.55 21.43 214.27 890.59 ######
Tires 2.9 2.90 4.54 4.18 8.6 5.68 12.19 5.43 46.42

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 22-23

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   8 
   
       DATE:     April 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



DRAFT 

                       
 

March 6, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
March 6, 2023 at 6:00 PM by in person and using ZOOM for Facebook Live Streaming in the 
Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, 
Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Mr. Lloyd Jones gave the invocation and 
Commissioner  Spruill  led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: Ms. Bennett asked to add BA#2023-117 for Ms. Dixon, 
Finance Officer. 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Agenda for tonight’s meeting.  

Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:   
 

a) Approval of Minutes from February 6, 2023 Regular Meeting  
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (Jan & Feb 2023) 
c) RESO 2023-006 A Proclamation Proclaiming March 2023 as the 21st Annual 

March for Meals Month 
d) RESO 2023-009 Authorizing Execution of Opioid Settlements and Approving 

the Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds Between the State of NC 
and Local Governments on Proceeds Relating to the Settlement of Opioid 
Litigation 

e) RESO 2023-010 Re-Authorizing the Increase in the Federal Procurement 
Policy Micro-Purchase Threshold 

f) RESO 2023-011 Preliminary Assessment Resolution and Approval of May 1, 
2023 Public Hearing for Eddie Smith Assessment District 
 

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Phelps and Mr. Potter on Item f). 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Mr. Lloyd Jones, Jr. Gourd Neck Road, Roper, ants elected officials to check 
into having this ban lifted on being catching herrings. 
 
 Ms. Sandra Floyd, 30 Golden Lane in Roper, wants someone to care about the animal shelter. 
She said she wants just one (1) person to give 15 minutes of their time to walk one of the dogs.  There 
were ten (10) dogs at the shelter today.  She walked them all.  There is a walking trail that makes a loop 
that goes behind the shelter.  She said she is not a dog person, but a cat person, but loves animals.  The 
shelter needs someone coming in once a week or once a month to walk the dogs. Ms. Floyd passed out 



DRAFT 

flyer of a dog that has been at the shelter for seven (7) months. She hopes that just hopes one (1)person 
will volunteer their time.  
 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER:   Chair Walker recognized Mr. Daniel Daw, 
Maintenance Worker I of Facilities as Employee of the Quarter for March 2023.  Chair Walker 
said the 2023 Employee of the Quarter was hired on October 8, 2018.  He was initially hired as a 
Part-Time Airport Assistant.  On October 16, 2021, he was hired Full-Time as a Maintenance 
Worker I in Facilities.  Ms. Renee’ Collier, County Manager Office Assistant nominated him 
said he has handled being the ONLY worker in his Department during vacancies.  He has been 
on top of all the work orders within his ability and is always looking for a way to do more!  Ms. 
Collier also said he has been extremely helpful with surplus and helping her get organized.  He 
deserves this award!! 
 

Chair Walker said Mr. Daw will receive a Certificate and a check for $50 along with 
having his picture in the County Administration Building. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  SENIOR CENTER:  Ms. Vanessa Joyner, Senior 
Center Director gave the following presentation to the Board showing all that has been happening at the 
Senior Center in the past year and upcoming events as well. Put in presentation. 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

 Ms. Joyner noted that Meals on Wheels needs 40 volunteers and she only has 13.  They may go 
to 5 meals a week if they can get the volunteers. If you would like to volunteer, please contact the Senior 
Center. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill said he appreciates what they do at the Sr. Center and what Ms. Joyner 
does for the community.  He asked her how many folks per month participate.  Ms. Joyner said at least 
100 people.  Commissioner Spruill asked how many Meals on Wheels does the Senior Center serve.  
Ms. Joyner said about 40 people. Ms. Joyner said if any of the Commissioners would like to volunteer 
with Meals on Wheels, please sign up with the Senior Center.  Chair Walker asked what time are the 
Meals on Wheels deliveries made.  Ms. Joyner said between 10:30 – 11:30 am. 
 
 The Commissioners thanked Ms. Joyner for her presentation. 
 
 KEYSTONE TAX SOFTWARE APPROVAL:   Mr. Curtis Potter spoke to the Board on this 
subject.  [The Keystone Contract is attached to and referenced herein as a part of these minutes.] 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 Mr. Potter said that Ms. Wilkins has looked at this software at another county’s office. 
 

Commissioner  Keyes made a motion to approve staff recommendation to select 
Keystone Information Systems, Inc. as the preferred vendor to supply an updated 
comprehensive tax software system and authorize staff to execute the attached contract 
after finalizing any negotiations to include any additional, more favorable terms or 
conditions recommended by the County Attorney.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.   
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
RURAL TRANSFORMATION GRANT:  The Skinnersville Civic Center Board 

(SCCB), Mr. Richard Livingston, Sr. Project Manager/GIS and Mr. Cameron Birtcher, Lead for 



DRAFT 

NC Fellow all spoke to the Board.  After numerous meetings between County staff and various 
representatives of the SCCB of Directors over the past several months, the letter below dated 
February 20, 2023 was recently received by the Chair and County Manager. 
 
 The SCCB representatives were invited to attend the Board of Commissioners meeting to discuss 
this request along with a request for the County to issue a letter of support to the SCCB to apply for 
grant funding under the recurring NC DOC Rural Transformation Grant process.   
 
 Staff have been reviewing this grant for several months to consider its highest and best use for 
the County including a possible inclusion from the three (3) towns. 
 
 Mr. Jack Webb, Vice-Chair of SCCB, said the Civic Center is located at south of the Albemarle 
Sound Bridge said the building was deeded to the community by stakeholders.  
 
 Mr. Larry Norman, grant writer for the Civic Center, said it hosts activities and services and is a 
place for community meetings, social and political events, a voting site, celebrations, banquets, 
computer classes, and health fairs with MTW.  He said the Albemarle Commission donated funds for the 
HVAC. The building has not been used since 2019 due to Covid. He said members have been making 
repairs.  In the future they would like to have cultural celebrations, internet hub, computer training class, 
movie night, after school programs, educational programs for adults, healthcare programs by ZOOM, 
exercises by ZOOM, substance  abuse programs, incorporate the performing arts, electrical, bricklaying, 
sports, Boy Scouts/Girls Scouts/4-H programs. 
 
 Mr. Chester McDowell, Jones White Road, presented a handout. He wanted to show how grant 
funds would be used. Some renovations that were discussed equal ~$320,000:  
Add a 20 x 40 shelter 
Kitchen expansion 350sq ft 
Front porch and drainage 
Hard surface of parking lot, lights, (sewage upgrade—$$ not determined yet) 
 
 Mr. McDowell said they needed a map for inclusion with the grant paperwork and went to the 
Register of Deeds for the map.  They are not asking the Board to correct the map or the deed. They are 
asking for land for the start and completion of the Skinnersville Civic Center. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes thanked the SCCB for their presentation. She went on to say that the intent 
when the land was deeded in 1978 was for enhancing the community. 
 
 Mr. Cameron Birtcher & Mr. Richard Livingston were in attendance to answer any questions. 
Mr. Livingston said that $950,000 is what the SCCB is asking for. Most awardees have gotten $800,000 
– $900,000 and there is no match and fairly open ended. This is one cycle for this grant (no additional 
funds). 
 
 Mr. Birtcher said that the County has to actually apply for the grant with the input from the 
SCCB.  He also mentioned that the land has to be owned by who has the work being done. 
 
 Mr. Potter said the County knew about this grant in November.  It was sent to all three towns at 
that time. Only one project can be chosen.  
 



DRAFT 

 Mr. Birtcher said other projects that the grant could be used for is updates to various County 
buildings/areas (i.e.  paving of the Senior Center parking area).   
 
 Mr. Potter said there could be a possible collaboration with SCCB and the recreation area for the 
parking area (so folks don’t park on the basketball court).  
 
 Mr. Potter said some Commissioners asked could this be used for the elevator project in the 
Courthouse; however, it can not be used for that. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked if the County could apply for the $950,000 and give $850,000 
needed by SCCB, which included the parking and lighting.  Mr. Potter said the County is not guaranteed 
that the $950,000 gets awarded.  It has also been discussed trying to amplify this grant for the PARTF 
grant. 
 
 Mr. Livingston stated that March 23 – May 7 is window for submitting the grant. 
 
 Chair Walker thanked the SCCB for their presentation and said the County will get back with 
them. 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 AVIATION/EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER (AVEOC) DESIGN FIRM 
PROPOSAL:  Mr. Potter spoke to the Board and said the County received five (5) responses for 
an RFQ on the design of the Aviation/Emergency Operations Center (AVEOC).  Mr. Potter, Mr. 
Richard Livingston, Ms. Mary Moscato, Ms. Missy Dixon and Commissioner John Spruill were 



DRAFT 

on the Review Committee.  Mr. Potter stated that tonight, this is more of an informational 
update.  If there is consensus from the Board once the review committee interviews the top two 
firms, the Review Committee can choose one and bring their choice back to the Board or the 
Board could participate in the interview process. 
 
 The two firms being interviewed are Oakley Architect out of Rocky Mount and LS3P 
which has an office in Raleigh. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said Hurricane Isabel showed the County what issues we have 
during a storm and why we need a bigger place for Emergency Management and that they have 
been partnered with the Airport. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion allow the Review Committee to interview the 
firms and bring their choice back to the Board for approval.  Commissioner Keyes 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board spoke to the Commissioners. 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
  

The Washington County Planning Board is recommending that Mr. Marty Swett fill the 
unexpired seat of Mr. Steve Barnes. The seat expires March 31, 2024. 
 
Mr. Swett has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to appoint Mr. Marty Swett to fill the 
unexpired term of Mr. Steve Barnes on the Washington County Planning Board.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
TRAVEL & TOURISM AUTHORITY  (TTA) BOARD 
 

At its March 2, 2023 meeting, the TTA Board unanimously recommended that Mr. 
Marcus Williams be removed from the TTA Board for perpetual absences from Board meetings 
and for failure to keep current with local occupancy tax returns.   
 

In the same motion, the TTA Board also recommended that the Board of Commissioners 
appoint Mr. Amar Patel, who is the new owner of the Rodeway Inn & Suites, to fill this vacancy. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the TTA’s recommendation  to 
remove Mr. Marcus Williams from the TTA Board for perpetual absences from Board 
meetings and for failure to keep current with local occupancy tax returns and to appoint 
Mr. Amar Patel, new owner of the Rodeway Inn & Suites, to fill Mr. Williams’ unexpired 
term on the TTA Board.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package . 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
  
 Commissioner Johnson stated that tomorrow she will speak at a rural summit about broadband and 
internet access.  This is the biggest task she has ever undertaken.  Even though there is a lot of money out 
there for broadband, there is a lot of red tape and a lot of people wanting the same money. It’s hard to 
follow the mapping that the Census provided. Trying to find a business that delivers what they promise 
and be affordable is going to be difficult. NC DIT is having the meeting at the Hilton in Raleigh.  
 
 Commissioner Spruill stated that at the last school board meeting, he and Mr. Potter received a 
donation of about $1900 for Pennies for Paws. Helena Ag was there that night and they made a donation to 
the County’s Animal Shelter.  Commissioner Spruill challenged other businesses to do the same. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps said someone asked about the fence at that the new school and could the 
County keep it up after the new school is completed.  Mr. Potter said he will check on it. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes said she chaired steering committee for the NCACC.  She thanked 
Commissioner Johnson (and current NCACC President) for having her on that committee. She said she 
also had a meeting with the Planning Board and the Fire Chiefs.  She said all the Commissioners have 
their areas of expertise and working together. 
 



DRAFT 

 Commissioner Walker said he recently visited the Animal Shelter but the Animal Control Officer 
had just left so he will be going back. 
 

1) Travel Approval, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
Ms. Bennett stated that each year while creating the Governing Board’s budget, money is 
allocated for travel/training and in a sense, is earmarked for certain conferences, courses, 
and  meetings that are repeated yearly.  Every now and then, new and/or different 
opportunities come available for the Clerk and Commissioners and in an effort to be 
transparent, she wanted to bring these items to the Board for approval since they will be 
coming out of the current year’s budget. Listed below are two such items. [Note:  There 
are funds available for these requests.] 
 
a) 17th Annual NC Black Summit on April 27-28 in Raleigh. Early Bird Registration is 

$189 and the hotel room discounted rate is $151/night x2=$302 (excludes taxes)  + 
~$62 for mileage (123 mi round trip x .50) + ~$47 for meals = total of ~$600 for the 
trip. (Commissioner Johnson has requested to attend this.) (See attached document.) 
[The document is attached to and referenced herein as a part of these minutes.] ( In 
speaking with Commissioner Johnson today, she indicated she will not be asking for 
reimbursement for mileage or meals which will save over $100 on this trip.) 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the abovementioned travel request 

as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Ms. Bennett asked if any additional Commissioners wants to attend the 17th Annual NC 
Black Summit (so she can go ahead and get you registered). 
 
 Commissioner Keyes and Chair Walker said they would like to attend also.  Ms. Bennett 
said she would make the arrangements. 

 
b) The NCACC used to have “County Assembly Day”.  Now it is “County Advocacy 

Days” being held in Raleigh on May 23 -24. This will now require an overnight stay 
if you wish to attend both days.  Registration is $75/person.  I’m estimating a hotel 
room at $151/night (excludes taxes) + ~$62 for mileage (123 mi round trip x .50)  + 
~$47 for meals = ~$335/person.  If all 5 of you wish to go, the total would be 
~$1,675.  (See attached document). [The document is attached to and referenced 
herein as a part of these minutes.]. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the abovementioned travel request 

as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Bennett asked how many Commissioners wish to attend County Advocacy Days (so 

she can go ahead and get you registered). They all said they wanted to attend.  Commissioner 
Spruill, Phelps and Keyes said they would like to spend the night on May 23. 

 
 

 
 

2) PreK – 12 Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 



DRAFT 

Mr. Potter planned to give the Board an update on the new school; however, the Steering 
Committee was pushed to next Wednesday. 
 

3) Washington County School Financing Bid Summary 
Mr. Potter spoke to the Board about the information below.
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 Mr. Potter said the County published an RFP and received two proposals.  Truist Bank is getting 
out of local government business, but the County did get one from them.  Terms were included in the 
package.  No action needs to be taken tonight.  The County is probably looking at an ~ 4% interest rate.   
 
 Mr. Potter said he will be meeting with our lobbyists this week  and will be talking about parking 
lot paving and if they can find funds for that and for the spare tires issue. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked who was planning to attend the Chamber of Commerce on Thursday, 
March 23 in Williamston at the Bob Martin Center. All the Commissioners and Mr. Potter said they would 
like to go.  Ms. Bennett said she will register them and send in payment for their table. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and  §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Keyes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Back in Open Session at 8:00 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 
Keyes  made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 



   
 

   
 

January 23, 2023 

The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
January 23, 2023 at 10:00 AM in the Commissioners Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC. 
Commissioners Julius Walker, Jr., Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Tracey A. 
Johnson. Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Deputy Clerk to the 
Board Renee Collier and Finance Officer Missy Dixon. Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett was 
unable to attend. 

Chair Walker called the recessed meeting to order. 

BUDGET WORKSESSION: Mr. Curtis Potter, County Manager/County Attorney went 
over the following FY23 Budget Workshop Agenda Detailed. Mr. Potter said he would like to 
add a one-page resolution to the consent agenda. He continued that the resolution would add the 
Sheriff and Register of Deeds to our progression step pay system based on years of relevant 
experience. Commissioner Keyes made a motion to add the resolution RESO-2023-004 to 
the consent agenda, Commissioner Phelps seconded. Chair Walker proceeded with the roll 
call: Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Spruill yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea and Commissioner Walker yea. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Items Discussed: 

Item 2. A. Financial Performance:  Due to vacancies in Detention has led to too many overtime 
hours being worked. Currently being monitored by staff. Our Scrap Tire is the biggest financial 
weakness due to unfunded state mandate to provide the service. There are efforts to have changes 
at the legislature.  



   
 

   
 

 

 
Item 2. B. Fund Balances: Mr. Potter went over each fund and gave a general overview of its 
current state. 

 

 
  



   
 

   
 

 

 

 



   
 

   
 

 
 

 

 



   
 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

   
 

 



   
 

   
 

Item 2. E- Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): Mr. Potter informed the board about the CIP request 
process and how the items were scored and chosen. He continued with the results of that process. 

Item 4. A. - Elections: Dora Bell, Elections Director, requested the board give another PT 
position to her department. She let the Board know that the current allotment if 999 hours for PT 
is not enough, and she knows a PT employee must remain below that which is why she is 
requesting a 2nd PT position.  

Item 4. B. - Planning: Allen Pittman, Planning Director, let the Board know that his office has 
been busy in the process of reviewing all development ordinances in an effort to spur growth in 
the county, by starting with General Statute 160D and work backwards. Mr. Pittman has that the 
Board consider his budget request for permitting software and he would like to keep his previous 
request for $10,000 for legal services, with the upcoming changes Mr. Pittman believes that is 
best. Discussion ensued on dilapidated structures and the hurdles accompanied with them.  



   
 

   
 

 
 



   
 

   
 

 



   
 

   
 



   
 

   
 

 
Item 4. C. - EMS: Jennifer O’Neal EMS/Transport Director brought a presentation to the 
Commissioners. Mrs. Oneal let it be known that it is difficult to find qualified people to fill the 
vacancies. As well as competitive salaries from surrounding areas. Discussion ensued on what 
rates for the current positions and possible solutions. Lastly, Mrs. O’Neal brought forward the 
need for updates to the EMS outposts. 

Item 4. D. - Sheriff: Johnny Barnes, Sheriff, began is budget request with informing the board of 
his current vacancies and possible upcoming vacancies. Mr. Potter added that the Sheriff had 
been in conversations about possible solutions because this is an urgent need, and although it 
may dampen employee morale, it cannot wait. After discussion ensued, Commissioner Spruill 
made a motion to move forward with the proposed changes to the Sheriff Deputy pay by 
increasing the starting rate to $40,400, Commissioner Keyes seconded. Chair Walker 



   
 

   
 

proceeded with the roll call: Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Spruill yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea and Commissioner Walker yea. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

With no more business, the board recessed the meeting until January 24, 2023 @ 8:30 
AM. 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Chair, Julius Walker, Jr.              Deputy Clerk, Elizabeth Renee Collier 

 



January 24, 2023 

BUDGET WORKSESSION CONTINUED: The Washington County Board of 
Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Tuesday January 24, 2023, at 9:30 PM in the 
Commissioners Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Julius Walker, Jr., 
Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Tracey A. Johnson. Also present were County 
Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Deputy Clerk to the Board Renee Collier and Finance 
Officer Missy Dixon. Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett was unable to attend. 

Chair Walker called the recessed meeting to order. 

Mr. Potter let the board know some of the presentations will be coming in a different 
order due to unforeseen circumstances and will also be adding Maintenance and the Airport if 
they are available. 

Item 7. A. IT: Darlene Fikes, IT Supervisor, informed the Board of her intention to retire after 5 
more years, although she will be available afterwards for transition or questions.   



 

Item 7. C.- Tax: Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator requested 2 additional positions, one being 
the land records coordinator, that person will be responsible for the additional GIS as well as 
taking over the transfers, the splits and that type of work that is done in the tax office. The 
second request is to have Darlene Harrison moved to the Deputy Tax Administrator. The Board 
and County Manager asked about the Early Payment discount and discussed. The consensus is 
that the discount is appreciated amongst our citizens.  

Item 7. D- Cooperative Extension: Rebecca Liverman, Extension Supervisor, has requested a 
serious look at the County’s pay progression plan in conjunction with their pay structure from 
NC State. They also are requesting a truck for their AG Agent as well as increase to their travel 



line. She also expressed a need for safety upgrades in her building. Mrs. Liverman would also 
like to see the County move to a per diem. 

Item 7. E.- Recreation: After giving his general requests, Randy Fulford, Recreation Director, let 
the Board know how important it was to have ADA compliant updates which are in the current 
CIP. 

Item 7. G. - Emergency Management: Lance Swindell, Emergency Management Director, 
mentioned there will be increases in his budget due to making things more efficient with 
different digital applications. Mr. Swindell added that maintenance of TLC is needed at River 
Tower, but not a major overhaul. 

Items 7. H. - Landfill: Danny Reynolds, Landfill Supervisor, expressed the only major budget 
request for the Landfill and that is a new John Deere zero-turn mower that is on state contract 
and would save the County roughly $3000. Mr. Potter said with the upcoming need in the spring, 
he will bring forth a budget amendment to move funds to be able to get that in this current fiscal 
year. There was also a discussion about contractors' billing and citizens with multiple properties, 
but no actions were taken.  

Items 7. J. - Airport: Knapp Brabble, Airport Supervisor said he has many items he is looking to 
replace to make ground maintenance easier. Knapp also said he would like each board member 
to join the NC AA Airport Association  

Item 7. K.- Maintenance: Mary Moscato, Interim Maintenance Supervisor gave an update and 
said the previous Supervisor set them up before he retired and believed his budget was an 
accurate description of the needs of maintenance. 

Item 7. F.- DSS: Lynn Swett, Deputy Director, quickly overviewed her CIP requests. There was 
a discussion about how reimbursement works from the state. 

Item 7. I. - Water: Lee Sasser, Utilities Director, expressed his concern about replacements being 
needed but those items have been discontinued and addressed his CIP. Mr. Sasser also expressed 
his need for newer vehicles over the next few years. Lastly, he addressed the interconnection 
issues between the County and towns.  

Item 8. A. The Board discussed Board meetings within the towns and ways to be advertise and 
involve the specific community. 

Item 8. B. Mr. Potter informed the board that with all the incoming grants currently in motion as 
well as upcoming staffing changes, it is best to consider a Grant Administrator and assistant 
County Manager position be added to the County Manager’s Office staffing.  

 

 

 



With no more business, Chair Walker asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to adjourn, Commissioner Phelps seconded. Chair 
Walker proceeded with the roll call: Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Spruill yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea and Commissioner Walker yea. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Chair, Julius Walker, Jr.              Deputy Clerk, Elizabeth Renee Collier 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda April 3, 2023
	4-3-2023 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Personal Property Involvent Accts for March 2023
	NCVTS Pending Refund Report for March 2023
	Real Estate PP and MV Refunds and Releases March 2023
	RESO 2023-001 Authorizing Sale of Real Property--521 Monroe Street
	RESO 2023-002 Authorizing Sale of Real Property--Park Avenue
	RESO 2023-003 Authorizing Sale of Real Property--411 Brinkley Avenue
	RESO 2023-012 ARGO Surplus
	RESO 2023-013 ARP Grants for Asset Inventory
	BOCC Memo re Grant and Procurement Manager for 20230403 mtg
	4-3-2023 Item 2 (public forum)
	4-3-2023 Item 3 Trillium Update
	Trillium 2022 Annual Report Washington County
	Slide Number 1
	TRILLIUM UPDATE
	Who We Are - Numbers
	Three Regions
	Medicaid Transformation- Standard Plans
	Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan:
	Behavioral Health I/DD Tailored Plan Regions
	Medicaid Transformation Tailored Plan Continued
	Organizational Changes
	Organizational changes continued:
	Project Updates
	Consumers served in Washington County
	Slide Number 13

	4-3-2023 Item 4 AVEOC Design Proposal Selection
	BOCC Memo re AVEOC Design Proposal Selection for 20230403 mtg
	Washington County AVEOC_Qualifications
	cover sheet_AVEOC
	cover letter_AVEOC
	Washington Co AVEOC_QUALS
	1. Firm Profile
	2. Resumes
	Structural Engineer
	MEP Engineer
	Civil Engineer

	3. Experience
	4. Workload
	5. Design Approach
	6. Litigation/Arbitration
	7. References


	4-3-2023 Item 5 Pre-K - 12 New School Update
	BOCC Memo re PK12 Update LGC Application Approval for 20230403 mtg w attach
	Washington County, NC School Project Funding Discussion Materials (Alternate Case - $1mm used for Debt Service) 3.27.23 Attach A.pdf
	School Project Funding Discussion Materials
	PreK-12 School Project Schedule and Budget Overview
	Estimated Amortization Schedule
	Debt Affordability Analysis
	Debt Affordability Analysis
	Debt Affordability Analysis
	Debt Affordability Analysis
	Debt Affordability Analysis
	Appendix	
	Summary of Bids Received
	Summary of Proposals�Truist Bank Proposal
	Preliminary Financing Schedule
	Municipal Advisor Disclosure


	4-3-2023 Item 6 Finance Officer's Report
	March 23 Finance Report
	March 23 Budget Amend-Transfers
	4-3-2023 Item 7 Other Items
	Reports for 4-3-2023 BoC Meeting
	FY23 Statistic Report for April Meeting
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	 Tax
	Sheriffs Office
	Utilities
	Landfill

	4-3-2023 Item 8 Closed Session
	3-6-2023 minutes
	BOC Mins Draft 20230123
	BOC Mins Draft 20230124



